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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{Formeriy known as “A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited”)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of A-ONE STEELS INDIA
FRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2024, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Statement of Cther Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements”)

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
the profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that daie.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Ruies made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.

Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statemenits.

Cther Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annua) Report, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. '
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connectiocn with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other
infermation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report,  we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions,
as applicable under the apgplicable {aws and regulations.

Managements and Board of Director's Responsibility for the Financiai Statements

The Campany’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
[ndian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic allernative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting Process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the standaione financial statements
as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and tc issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually
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or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Qbtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinicn on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubst on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 prepared
prior to effective date of the business combination of amalgamating entities under common control
referred to in Note 58 of the financial statements were audited by the predecessor auditor (The reports
of A-one Steels India Private Limited and Aaryan Hitech Steels Private Limited were dated 29"
September 2023 and 27" September 2023 respectively, expressed an unmodified opinion).The
previously issued financial information have been restated to comply with Ind AS 103 Appendix C for
Business combinations of entities under common control and included in these financial statements
as comparative financial information. The management has provided approved and adopted financial
statements of amalgamated entity for the financial year 2021-22, 2022-23. The adjustments made to
the previously issued financial information to comply with the said ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on cur audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the
backup of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic
mode has been kept on servers physically located in India on a
periodical/incremental basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2{i) below of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, '

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.
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f. In with respect {0 the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in "Annexure B” of this report.

g. With respect to the other matters tc be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and 1o the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

(i The Company has disclosed the impact of any pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements- Refer Note 44 to the Standalone
financial statements.

(iiy ~ The Company did not have any iong-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i)  There were no amocunts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(ivy  {(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note no 65 to the Financial Statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shali

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the
Cempany or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note no 86 to the Financial Statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or eniities, including foreign
entities (*"Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™ by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

+ provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based con such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to cur notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub clause (iv)(a) and (iv}(b) contain any
material mis-statement.

h. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the company is in compliance with
Sec 123 of the act.

i. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
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recording audit trail, except where in respect of books of records pertaining to three
units, where the accounting software did not have audit trail feature enabled throughout
the year. the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year, except as
atherwise stated, for all relevant transactions recorded in the software having a feature
of audit trail., During the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software.

j.  With respect to the matier to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):
In our opinicn and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is incorporated as a private company and thus the provision of section
197(16) of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

For Singhi & Co,
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm’s Registration No. 302049E)

{Membership No 077508)
UDIN: 24077508BKCRS01269
Bengaluru

Date: 21-08-2024
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

i)

a) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment:

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property plant and equipment;

B. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets;

b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and
Equipment are verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, this pericdicity of physical
verification is reasonahle having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancies noticed on such verification.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company, except the following:

Descripticn Gross Held in the | Whether | Reason for not being held in the
of carrying name of promoter, | name of the Company
property value (z director
Lakhs) or their
relative or
employee | _
Land 4.24 A One Steels | No A One Sieels India Private
india Private Limited amalgamated into A-One
Limited Steels and Alloys Private Limited
Building 207 .68 A One Steels | No A One G&teels India Private
India Private Limited amalgamated into A-One
Limited Steels and Alloys Private Limited
Land 116.10 Aaryan Hitech | No Aaryan Hitech Steels India
Steels  India Private Limited amalgamated
| Private into A-One Steels and Alloys
' Limited Private Limited
" Building 127.07 ¢ Aaryan Hitech | No Aaryan Hitech Steeis India
Steels  India Private Limited amalgamated
Private info A-One Steels and Alloys
Limited Private Limited
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by
us, the Company has not revalued its property plant and equipment (Including Right-of-
Asset) or intangible assets or beth during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benhami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made there under ,and therefore
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the
details in the standalone financial statements does not arise.

a) The Physical verification of the inventory {excluding material in fransit) has been carried out
by the management during the year end and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management are appropriate. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there were no material discrepancy of 10% or more in the
aggregate of each class of inventory.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from banks and/ar financial institutions during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the Company. The deviations noted between the books of accounts
and the guarterly returns/statements filed with such banks and financial institutions have
been disclosed in Note no 57 of the standalone financial statements.

iy According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has made investments in
companies and has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parties. The Company has provided advances in the nature of loans to employees, stood
guarantee, and has not provided loans, stood guarantee, provided security or advances in the
nature of loans to any firms, limited liability parinership or any other parties during the year.

ay The aggregate ameunt during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans and guarantees to asscciates and o parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below:;
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Amount {Rs._ in Lakhs}

/:J;.

Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances
in nature
of loans

Aggregate amount granted /
provided during the year:
Subsidiaries NIL NiL NIL MNIL
Joint Ventures NIL NIL NIL NIL
Associates NIL NiL NIL NIL
Other {loan to NIL MIL NIL 102 .32
employees)
Other Companies 234453 | NIL NIL NIL
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in
respect of above cases:
Subsidiaries 23,610.00 NiL 1,154 .01 NiL
Joint Ventures NiL NIL. NIL NIL
Associates NiL NIL NIL NIL
|
- Other (loan to NIL NIL 1 NIL 72.42
employees)
Qther Companies 535185 | NIL | NI NI
I

In respect of the aforesaid advances, the terms and conditions under which such
advances were granted are not prejudicial to the company’'s interest, based on the
information and explanation provided by the company.

Based on the explanation and information given tc us and based on the examinaticn of
available records in respect of the same, the schedule of repayment of principal and
interest has been stipulated in the loan agreements. Further, the repayment of principal
and interest has been regular as per the terms of the agreement during the period.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, there are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of
loans granted to companies, which are overdue for more than ninety days. Accordingly,
clause 3(ifi}(d) of the order is not applicable
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e) According to the information and explanaticns given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, of the Company has not renewed or extended or fresh loans
given to settle to over dues of existing loans given to the same party is not applicable to
the company. Accordingly, clause 3(iii}(e) of the Order is not applicable

fy According to the information and explanaticns given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any leans either repayable on
demand without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, clause 3{iii){f)
of the Order is not applicable.

iv) Accoerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

v} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted deposits other than those in the normal course of business, hence the
provision of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under not
applicable to the company; Accardingly, clause 3{v} of the Order is not applicable.

vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as gpecified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products.
We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. YWe have not, however, made a
defailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

vii)

a)' According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the beoks of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service
tax and other material statutory dues have been generally reqularly deposited during the
year by the company with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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b} According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the statutcry dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of dispute are as follows: -

Nature of Amount {(Rs, | Period to which the | Forum where the
Name of the statute | the dues. in Lakhs) amount relates dispute is pending
Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017 Goods & FY2017-18 to Deputy Commissioner of
Services Tax 7363 | FY2019-20 Commercial Taxes
Goods and Services Goods & FY2017-18 to Assistant Commissioner
Tax Act, 2017 Services Tax 14.03 | FY2019-20 of Commercial Taxes
First Appellate Authority,
The Income-Tax Act, AY2014-156 to High Pitched
1961 Income Tax 632007 | AY2021-23 Aszessment

vill} According to the information and explanations given {o us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the {ax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

ay According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of inferest thereon to any lender from whom
the loan is borrowed during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{x}{a) of the Order is not
applicable.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or govermnment authority.

¢} [n our apinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the
Company, we report that ne funds raised on short-term baS|s have been used for long
term purposes by the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
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its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 .Accordingly, clause 3(x)(e) of
the Order is not applicahle.

f)  According to the information and exptanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securfties held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause3(x)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(xi){a)} of the Order is not
applicable.

by Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or parily
convertible debentures during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3 (xi)(b) of the Order
is not applicable

Xi)

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance
of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

b} In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, no report under
143(12) of the Act in form ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, has heen filed with the Central Government.

¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are no
whistle blower complaints received during the year. -

xiij As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, Accerdingly, clause 3(xiii} of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all tfransactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements,
as required by the accounting standards.

Xiv)
ay Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
b} The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.
XV) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3{xvi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. —
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xvi)

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of india Act, 1934 Accordingly, clause 3(xvii)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

b The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Hence a Certificate of Registration (CoR)} is not required as per Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1834. Accordingly, clause 3({xvii){b) of the Order is not applicable.

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvii){c) of the Order is not
applicable.

d)  According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
the company does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvii)(d)
are not applicable.

xvil) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause3(xix) of the Order is not applicable.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial asseis and payment of financial
liabitities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, cur knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to cur attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor
any assurance that all liahilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xX) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company,

a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compiiance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.
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b} There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (8) of section
135 of Companies Act.

XXi}) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

calkiiay Jdi
Paniner | Py
(Membership No. 077508)

UDIN: 24077508BKCRS0O1269
Bengaluru.

Date 21-08-2024
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Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of A-ONE STEELS INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”} as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAl'Y". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as reguired under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion cn the Company's internal financtal controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. VWe conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obiain reascnable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obiain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. QOur audit of
mternal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
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Chartered Accountanis

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal centrol based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the sfandalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinien on the Company’s internal financial controls system aver financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed fo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of standalane financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial centrol over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that;

{1} Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2} Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unatthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due o error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate hecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with respect to the standalone financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on
the internal conirol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Contrels Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SINGHI & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 30204

Pa /
Membership No. 077508

UDIN: 24077508BKCRS0C 12869
Place: Bangalore

Date: 21-08-2024
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A-OME STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{formerly known as "&-One Stael and Alloys Private Limited"}
Standalene Balanca Sheet as at March 31 2024
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A one House, No. 326, CQAL Layout Ward ho. 0B, Sahatar Magar, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560092

(AKX amount are in ¥ Lakhs , unvess otferwise statedl?

The accampanying notes are 2n integral part of these Standalone & ial
This is the Standalene Balance Sheet referred to in cur Audit repart of sven date.
Far Singhi & Co

[Chartered Sccountants
ACAI FRM: 302045E

Place: Bengaluru
(Cate:21-06-24

e

W .l “\

 oh ehalf of the Beardgf, Dureﬁor;of
An Dn\e ﬂ-ee India Private Lumted :

Sandeosp Kumar
Vithig Tumq Director Director
O DIN-DEI50845 CHIN: 02112630

Place: Berngaluru
Dratei2 1-08-24

Note Az at Az at
No. March 31, 20245 March 31,2023
Aasets
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 26,710.81 20:356.77
Capital work-in-proqrass & 540540 301160
Right-of-use assats 3 286799 11.466.95
Ither Inkangible assats 4 24.53 4785
Financial assets
Investments in subsicliaries 7 G064 BE0.A4
Investments 2 503458 4,653.71
Laans & 11840 107425
Other finzncial assets iy 7.739.61 713742
Mon-current tax assets (nat] i 7236 608
Crther non-cusrent assets 12 84548 1,020.06
[ Total Non-current Assets 53,200.41 48,697.34
Current asseks
Inventoriez 13 4459313 4340382
Financial assets
Trade receivables 14 53.1£391 33.792.50
{ash and cazh equivalents 15 TH7.00 342234
Bark balances sther than eash and ¢ash equivalents 16 745415 15438
Laans 3T Ta42 164
Dher financial assets i3 £65.55 131584
Current Tax Assot (net) 13684 -
Cither current assets 19 27591444 22,582.06
Total Current Aszets 1.24,957.44 1,11,23258
Total Asscts 1,95,257.85 1,55,930.52
Equity and tinbilities
Equity
Equity share capital 20 167372 167372
Qther equity 21 _3-3.'.-‘59.35 3114642
Total Equity 35,433.07 32,820.14
Nen-carrent linkilities
Firaneial liabilines
Borrawings 22 1654779 1568360
Lease liabilities 23 110417 11,2855
Cther financial liakilities 24 227433 2,105.836
Preseisicng 25 34389 20651
Ceferred taz liabilities (net 26 26145 32871
Qther non-current liabilties 27 262691 4,194.56
Total Non Current Lishikities 34,768.24 34,005.14
Current liabilities
Financral liakilitias
Beorrewings 28 67,322.50 24704
Lease labilities 29 197.50 2049.35
Trada payables 0
total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises; and Era Rl 31.85
total autstanding dues of creditars other than micra enterprises and small enterprises. 26,197.78 17,213.42
Oither financial liabilities Ell 75826 40307
{Cther current liabilifies 32 17.499,32 345182
Provisians 33 10.07 ET4
Current kax liabilities {net) 34 - 27135
Total Current Lisbillties 1,23,056.54 93,105.24
‘Takal Equity and Lisbilities 1.83,257.85 1,59,920.52
Material Accounting Folicies oz
Hotes ta the Financll Statements e

y é‘a N‘agaraja

. Campany Secretary
. M. Mog AS2496
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A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

{formerly known as " A-On= Stesd and Alloys Private Limitad”)
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A one House, Na. 326, CQAL Layout Ward Mo. 08, Sahakar Magar, B
Standalone Statement of prefit and lass for the year endad March 31, 2024
(Al amaunt are in § Lakhs, unfess otharwise stated?

luru, Kar

India, 560092

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of these St financial
This iz the Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss referred ta in our Rudit report of even date,

For are an behalf of the Board of Directors of
A-Ona Steels India Private Limited

For Singhi & Ca

Charterad Accountants
ICAl FRN: 302043E /,_»’(}ﬁi & e ST
: fx‘_‘;‘:;/ ‘\_ "\“ )
B .
f St % % L
_..-—-"j .“f; o Co

Sunil Jallan
Whale Time Dirgctor
DIM: 02150846

Partngr Diractar

hMembership Mo
Flaca: Bengalury
Date:2 1-08-24 Ce-

Place: Bengaluru
Date:21-08-24

Sandeep Kumar .

DIN: 02112630

Mote For the year ended For the year ended
Mo. March 31, 2024 farch 31,2023

Inearme
Revenue from operations a5 348,875.20 2,02,364.74
Other income 36 2,425.02 969.96
Total Incomz 1,51,400.92 2,31,934.70
Extpenses
Cost of materials consurmed . 37 3,15,327.48 2,50,245.3%
Changes in invertories, finished goods and werk-in-progress k13 8.101.22) {7.640.83)
Ernplayee benefit axpense 39 1296485 250108
Finance costs A0 8,083.26 532857
Depraciation and amomtisation expenze a1 121521 242198
(ther expenses Az 25,993 24 1806597
Total Expenses 1,47,820.62 2,72,022.13
Profit before tax 3,580.30 11,912.57
Tax expensas
Current tax 55 LO27.16 315982
Daferred tax charge/benefit [65.62) B2
Total Tax Expenses 961.54 3.077.70
Profit for the year 2.618.76 &,834.37
Other comprehensive income/(loss}
Ttems thaz will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurament of defined benefit plans (7.65) 1687

- Income tax relating te these iterns 55 1583 .25

15.71) 1262

leerns that will be reclassified to profit or boss - -
Total coraprehensive income/(loss) for the year 2,613.05 §,847.49
Basic and diluted gs per shere (Absolute Number) 43 156.46 527.86
Material Accounting Policies Tta2
Nuotes fo the Finoncizt Statements ER Xl

o

Paoja Sara Magaraja
Company Secretary
M. Mo AS2496




A-0ME STEELS IMDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{formesly known as "A-One Steal and Aloys Private Limited"”)
CAM : U2B998A20T12PTCOR3429

& One House, Mo. 328, COAL Layout Ward Mo. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore, Bengaluru, Karnataka, lndia, 560092

Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended ffarch 31,2024

AN amount are in Tlakh, unfess otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Miarch 31,2024

Far the vear ended
iarch 31,2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit befare tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit befare tax to cash genarated from

aperating activities

Proviston for employee benefits

Depreciation and amortisatian expense
Impairment of trade receivables

{Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest incorme

Finance costs

Operating profit before warking capital changes

Adjustments for (increase}/decrease in operaling assets
Inventories

Trade receivables

Loans Given te Employees

Other financial assets

Cther non financial assets

Adjustments for increase/{decrease} in operating liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Other nen financial liabilities

Cash generated from/f{used in) operations
Less: Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Met cash flow generated from/{used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for PPE, intangibfe assets and CWIP

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(lncreasel/decrease in investments

Loan Given to Related Parties

Proceeds from PPE, intangible assets and CWIP

Interest income

Met cash inflow from/(used in) investing activities {B}

Lash flows from financing achivities

Repayments of borrowings

Procesds from borrowings

Payment of |ease liabilities

Payment of interest towards lease liability

Dividend paid

Finance costs

Met cash inflow from/{used in) financing activities ()

Met inerease {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C}

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

358030 11,912.57
138,59 10715
321521 242195
123.96 45541

[5.05) -
(1,585.09) (852.07)
8,089.26 5293.39
13,557.22 19,338.44
{1,18931) {22,413.32)
{19.475.38) {12,224.84)
(10.77) {32.00)
1.291.07 {5492.29)
(5.493.83) {13,961.67)
19,253.51 381557
124.08) 488.73
14,005.92 3,52447
21,814.35 {26,956.91}
{1,641.43) (4,585.76}
20,i72.92 {31,542.67)
{10,688.42) (12,397.50}
{1,508.07) {4,381.13}
{1,861.26) {3.199.60)
- 312258

12.00 -
£564.75 39993
(13,381.00} {16,455.72)
{11,355.87} (6,001.87)
10,519.61 59,358.95
(19407} {74.50)
(904,37} {960.36)

10.10) -
(7,512.48) {4,023.03)
(9,447.26) 43,298.25
{2,655.34) 300.86
342234 3,121.48
7E67.00 3,.422.34




A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIM : U23999KKA2012PTCOE3432
Standal Stat t of ch in sguity for the year endzd March 31, znzh
(Al amount are in ¥ Lakhs, unless othenwise stated) :

&. Fquity share capitsl

Balancs as at March 31, 2022 1,673.72
Change in equity share capital during 2022-23 -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,673.72
Change in equity share capital during 2023-24 -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,673.72

B. Other equity

Retained Sccurities | Capital Resirve Items of other comprahensive income
Particulars earnings premium Remeasurement of Reme;asurament. of Total
defined benefit
_ equity instrements -
),
Balance as at March 31, 2022 18,208.83 2,352.08 1,61[?..25 - 76.44 22,249.52
Profit for the year 8,334.28 - I - - 328428
Cther comprehensive income - - - - 16.87 16.87
Tax impact on above - - - - {425} (4.25)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2709311 2,252.00 1,612.25 - 8506 31,146.42
Balance as at March 31, 2023 27,093.11% 2.352.00 1,51?‘25 - 85.06 31,146.42
Profit for the year 261876 - L= - - 2,618.76
Dividend Paid during the year (A1) - ! - - - (0.10)
Other comprehensive incoms - - : - - {7.65} {7.65)
Tax impact on above - - - - 1.93 1.93
Balance a5 at March 31, 2024 29,711.77 2,352.08 1,613!25 - 83.34 33,758.36
Material Accounting Policies Tto2
Notes ta the Financial Statements , Tta 71
The above stat t of changes in equity should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes
This iz the Standalone Stat t of Changes in Equity referred to in our Audif report of even date,

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

/J—-———JQNE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
LN

Y Sunil Jallarl
Part y ; ) Whelg Timg Director  Director - Company Secretary
e

DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630 . M No.:A52496

Place: Bengaluny _.___Plaéé: Bengaluru -
Date:21-08-24 Date:21-08-24 [ — S




Continued from previous page

Metes te Staterment of cash flows:

(i) Componenis of cash and bank balances {refer note 15 and14§)

{ii}

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Cash and bank balances at end of the year

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2022

767.00 342234
746415 6,154.38
8,231.15 9,576.72

Racondiliation between the opening and dasing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars

Mon-current borrowings

Current borrowings

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Balance as st April 1, 2023
Met Cash Flows during the year
Adjustment for processing fee
Other non-cash charges
Balance as at March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Net Cash Flows during the year
Adjustment far pracessing fee
Other non-cash charges
Balance as at March 31, 2023

15,883.60 70,247.15
1.550.81 {2418.38}
na -
{517.84) {6.26)
15,847.78 £7,822.51
536973 27.251.81
10,617.28 42,995.34
2418 -
{127.60) -
15,883.60 70,247.15

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with thel"indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash Flow
Statements" specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{iv] The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the atcompanying rotes 1 to 71

Material Accounting Policies
Notes to the Financial Statements

Tt
3ta 71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Siatement of Cash Flows referred to in our Audit repért of even date.

For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants e,

Melhbership fo. 07750

Flace: Bangaluru
Date:21-08-24

Sunil Jallan 7|
Whole Time _Diré;t’ur |
DIN: 02150846

: e~
Flace: Bangaluru

[ate:21-08-24

Sandaep Kushar :f.'. I
Director
DIN: 02112630 .- .

R

Pooja Sara Nagaraja -
Company Secretary. /
M. Mo A52496

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
A-OMNE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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A-One Steels India Private Limited
{formerly known as "A-One Steel and Alioys Private Limited™)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i

(i)

Company Overview:

A-One Steels India Private Limited (the Company) is aprivate limited company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at A One House No. 326, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore —
560092. The Company was incorporated on April 9, 2012. The Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading of ron& Steel products,

Material Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance:

The material accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial statements are
listed below. These poiicies have been applied consistently by the Company for all the periods presented in
these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated,

These Standalore financial statements (“the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended and other refevant provisions of the Act, '

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorised and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on August21, 2024, '

(A) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cbst convention with the exception of
certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved a scheme of arrangement of amalgamation of A-One
Steels India Private limited and Aaryan Hitech Steels India Private Limited {*Amalgarmating Companies”)
with A-One Stee! and Alloys Private Limited (“Amalgamated Company”) in its meeting held on May 27,
2021. The scheme has been filed with the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"). The
scheme is effective from April 1, 2021 upon approval from NCLT order dated November 22, 2023. The
appointed date as proposed by the Company js April 1, 2021.




As fully described in Note no. 58, during the year ended on scheme sanctioned by NCLT, the previously
published Financial Statements of the company has been restated for the accounting of merger as the

entities under common control.

(ii){B) Current and non-current classification

(i)

(ii}

(i)

All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with
the Company’s normal ecperating cycle,which is based on the nature of business and the time elapsed
between deployment of resources and the realisation of cash and cash equivalents. The company has
considered an operating cycle of 12 months.

{C)Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (T), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

(D} Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

ltems Basis of measurement
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability/asset Present value of defined benefit obligation less fair

value of plan asset

{F) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilifies,
and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Recognition of deferred tax asssts ~ The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based

on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilised.

Business model assessment — The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business cbiective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how
these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors

financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior o their maturity -1 _stand the




[t

which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's coniinuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and accordingly prospective change to

the classification of those assets are made.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of leases - ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is
reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease
basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the
lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account the
location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods
is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering
current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease
period relating to the existing lease contract.

Expected credit loss (ECL) =The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future
economic conditions and credit behaviour {e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses).

The Company makes significant judgements regarding the following while assessing expected credit loss:

®  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk
= Estabiishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
preduct/market and the associated ECL

= Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions and Contingent Liskilities —At each Balance Sheet date, based on the management
judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions
against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the aciual future outcome may be different from this
judgement.

Useful lives of depreciable/famortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of useful lives,
residual values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date,

based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates rela e-to—teshnical and
SN

economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.
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Defined benefit obligation {DBO} = Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary

increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined

benefit expenses.

Fair value measuremenis—Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not availabie). This involves developing estimates

and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Retirement benefit obligations - The Company's retirement benefit obligations are subject to a number of
assumptions including discount rates, inflation, salary growth and mortality rate. Significant assumptions
are required when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact
on the amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The
Company sets these assumptions based on previous experience and third-party actuarial advice. The

assumptions are reviewed annually and adjusted following actuarial and experience changes.
Revenue

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning revenue
earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling

price basis, using a five-step model.
Revenue from safe of goods

Revenue is recegnised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount
that reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or
services at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction
price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:
a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs; or
b. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced:; or
¢. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company
and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance compieted to date.

point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.




L4

(iv)

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Recegnition in case of local sales is generaily recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export
sales is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading. The Company
recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin

of the sale.

Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at
contract inceptionconsidering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed

at end of each reporting pericd.

Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives shori-term advances from its
customers, Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract
inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when

the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Contract balances:

Trade Receivables and Contract Assets _

A ftrade receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to a customer and consideration
becomes unconditional. Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive

consideration that is conditional other than the passage of time.

Contract liabilities:

Contract liabilities are Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
entity has already received consideration. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the company
satisfies its performance obligation under the contract.

Other operating income

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right o receive the benefit is established and
conditionsattached to the benefits are satisfied.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest
method.
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts

through the expected life of the financia! instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Comimission income

Commission mcome are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss only when the relevant services have

been rendered.

Employee Benefiis

Short term_emplovee benefits:

Short term empioyee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as
the refated services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus efc. are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are

presented as current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term employee benefits:

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly coniributions to the plan at a
predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Govermment of
India. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation
for contribution to defined contribution pian are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of

profit and loss in the period during which the related services are rendered by the employees.
Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for iump sum
payments to vested empioyees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an
amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for gach completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to

gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for
past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations
are fo be setfled. The resultant actuarial gain or ioss on change in present value of the defi ned benefit

obligation or change in return of the plan assets is recogmsed as an income or
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estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,

discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for
the peried by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/{asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefi liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of

profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailnent is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settiement ocours.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The

liability in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain

and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange iransactions and translations

Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency

amount of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.
Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are
restated/translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporling date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilittes which are measured in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value
which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Campany's
menetary items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in
previous financials statement (cther than those relating to fixed assets and other Iong term monetary

assets) are recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.
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fncome tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to

the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended 1o realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward 1ax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognised for;
temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not @ business combination and that affecis neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at
the time of the fransaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxabie temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred
tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probabie/ no longer probable respectivety
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

{viil} Inventories

Inventories comprise the followings:
a) Raw materials,

b} Work-in-progress,

¢) Finished and semi-finished goods
d) Stock-in-trade, and

e) Stores and spares.
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Inventoriesare valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable
value is made on an item by item basis. Cost comprises of alt cost of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined

using firstin, first out method of inventory valuation.
Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs

of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management's estimate based on

demand and market of the inventories.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less at the time
of purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets
Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably

requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liability

Centingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent ||ab|I|ty, unless the
probability of cutflow of economic benefits is remote.
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All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and l.oss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of properiy, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative

periods are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of the Act,

The useful lives of the assets are as under:

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Tangible assets:

Land Not depreciable asset
Factory sheds and building 30 & 60 years
Plant and equipment 15 & 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipments 3 & 5 years
Vehicles 8 & 10 years

Based on technical evaluation and consegquent advice, the management believes that its estimates of
useful

lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these asseis.
Depreciation on addition fo property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the
date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and
equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as

the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and

changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Investment in subsidiary companies

An investor, regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), shall determine
whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. An investor controls an investee when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to

affect those returns through its power over the investes.

Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following:

a) power over the investee;
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b} exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

c)} the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in subsidiary companies at cost in accordance with
the option available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements’,

Investment carried at cost is tested for impairment as per Ind-AS 36.

Leases

As lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor classified as finance or operating lease. Lease income from
operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the

balance sheet based on their nature.

As lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and plant & machinery.
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a coniract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right fo control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the

lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use {ROU) asset and a
correspending lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of 12 months or less (short-term leases} and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any iniiial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated

depreciaticn and impairment losses,
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ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter_ of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumsténces indicate that their carrying amounis may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows
that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the couniry of domicile of ithese leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company

changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments

have been classified as financing cash flows.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’'s or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash

inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its astimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU-(or grdup of CGUs)on a
pro rata basis,

After impairment, depreciationfamortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life,

Borrowing costs
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Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other

borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Financial instruments

initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilitles are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Trade

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.
GClassification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
¢ amortised cost,
+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or
¢ Fair vaiue through profit and loss {FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassifi ed subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the penod the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

¢ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investmeht is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

¢ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and « 3
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e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity
investment). This election is made on an investmenti by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOC) as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Comparny may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that

would otherwise arise.

Financia} assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is

provided to management, The information considered includes:

¢ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and

» the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets 1o third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FYTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of moeney and for the credit risk

associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular pericd of time and pther basic

lending risks and costs {e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

e terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and
« terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.q., non- recourse

features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contraciual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amocunt that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued {but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination} is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of

the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financizl assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is

recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Firancial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

including any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated

in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVYOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subseguent measurement & gain and loss




extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.
tmpairment of financial instrumenis

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:-
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

- Financial assets measured at FVQOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issue.r'

¢ abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit penod

s the restructunng of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

+ itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisafion; or

» the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss

Loss aliowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument,

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
coniractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's hlstoncal experlence and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.
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The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than

agreed credit period.
The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
¢ the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company te actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

s the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects tc receive}.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.
Wiite-off

The gross carryin'g amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to

enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due,
Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as

bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted

into equity shares as at the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a later date.
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporti

operating decision maker.




&

{xix)

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate

resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm'’s length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services, Further:

1, Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the
segment including inter-segment revenue.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining
the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable fo
segments are included under unallocable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and net allocable to segments is included in
unaliocable income.

4, Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilifies represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as

a whole and not allocable fo any segment.

The Board of Director{s} are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker or ‘CODM within
the meaning of Ind AS 108.

intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent
expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense when
incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate fulure economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the

asset,

intangible assets under development

Expenditure on research and development eligible for capiialisation are carried as intangible assets under
development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use.An intangible asset is
derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains

derecognised.




Useful lives of intangible assets
Computer Software’'s & other intangible assels is being depreciated on Straight line method based on the
method as prescribed under Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013.

Intangible assels Useful lives (in years)
Software 3 Years

) Government grants, subsidies and export incentives

~ Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants / subsidy will be received.Export benefits
are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving
the same.Other government grants and subsidies are recognised as income over the pericds necessary to

match them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.
{xxi) Derivative financial instruments and hedgs accounting

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments to reduce
business risks which arise from its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations. The
instruments are confined principally to forward foreign exchange contracts, cross currency swaps, interest
rate swaps and collars. The instruments are employed as hedges of transactions included in the financial
statements or for highly probable forecast transactions/firm contractual commitments. These derivatives

contracts do not generally extend beyond six months.

Derivatives are initially accounted for and measured at fair value on the date the derivative contract is

entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

The Company adopts hedge accounting for forward foreign exchange and interest rate contracts wherever
possible. At inception of each hedge, there is a formal, documented designation of the hedging
relationship. This documentation includes, inter alia, items such as identification of the hedged item and
transaction and nature of the risk being hedged. At inception, each hedge is expected to be highly effective
in achieving an offset of changes in fair value or cash flows atiributable fo the hedged risk. The
effectiveness of hedge instruments to reduce the risk associated with the exposure being hedged is
assessed and measured at the inception and on an ongoing basis. The ineffective portion of designated

hedges is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When hedge accounting is applied:




(3atif}

= for cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted iransaction results in the recognition of
a nonfinancial asset or liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or
losses on the derivative that had previcusly been recognised in equity are included in the initial
measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or a liability, amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same

period in which the hedged item affects the statement of profit and loss.

In cases where hedge accounting is not applied, changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss as and when they arise.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, temminated, or exercised,
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or toss on the hedging
instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged
transaction is no longer expected to ocecur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is

transferred to the statement of profit and loss for the pericd.
Business Combination under common control

Business combinaticns throcugh common control transactions are accounted on a pooling of interest
method. No adjustments are made to reflect the fair values, or recognize any new assets or labilities,
except to harmonise accounting policies. The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the
transferor becomes the reserves of the transferee. The difference between consideration paid and the net

assets acquired, if any, is recorded under capital reserve / retained earnings, as applicable.

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business acquisition are expensed as incurred. Any
subsequent changes to the fair value of contingent consideration classified as liabilities, other than

measurement period adjusiments, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

{xxiil) Materiat Accounting Policy Information

The Company adopted Disclosure of accounting policies {Amendmentis to Ind AS 1) from 1 April 2023.
Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies themselves, they

impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material” rather than “significant” accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
agsisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to

understand other information in the financial statements.

.....Space intentionally left blank. ...,
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A-OME STEELS IMDIA FRIVATE LIMITED

tfermerly known as "A-One Stesl and Allays Private Limited”)

Motes to tha lalone fi Jal for the year ended March 21,2024
£l armowat ara i ¥ Lakhs | wnfess atigoeie ke

1 Property, plant and equipment

Lurrant year Grozs block (at cast) Nelk blu:k -
As at Ackditi Drlspasal! Az at Az pt As at Asat
April 1, 2023 during the year Adjustrent Iiarch 31, 2024 il 1, 2023 4 March 31, 2034 March 31, 2034
Freehald land 530.65 - 530.80 - - - - 53064
Factary sheds and building 1.1s8.82 45097 164580 0361 5477 - 158308 149151
PFlant and equiprent 2185162 519196 3004376 412677 241693 - 554370 2350008
Elactrical installatecn 39243 12599 L1642 14030 47.00 - 167.29 33103
Furniture and fixtures 10233 2582 2615 2238 1065 - 33.00 4515
Cifice ecuipments . 51.52 1129 6261 2275 B39 - 314 ar
Machinery Foundation [Eet ) X - 073 058 .08 - 0.64 ong
Laboratory bquipmerts 657 . . 0.57 026 0.08 - 0.35 022
Camputers 9532 19.16 - 114.48 4751 24.39 - 71.90 4258
Weaicles 33555 14537 2270 43822 10776 sg.90 15.74 Tad 52 313.30
Laasghald [mpravemants
- on Plant & Machinery 236,45 - - 23645 LA 1] - - AL 23636
- on Euilding 13254 575 13629 014 002 - 018 T38.13
24924838 2,5976.31 22.70 23,882.49 457211 2.615.31 15.74 717168 26, T10.51
Previous year Gross block (st cost) A dated depreciation Nzt block
Az at Adeliti Disposalf As at Az st Additions Dispoalf hs at Asat
April 1, 2022 during the ywar Adjustmant March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022 during the year  Adji March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Freehold land 252.67 27832 - 53089 - - - - 55089
Factory sheds and building Ereaa 2toz4 - 1.198.32 B5.7E 17E3 - 10361 1,085,317
Plant and sejuiprment 13,194.10 965772 - 2185182 243554 1E6E7.23 - 412677 1772505
Electrical installation 35383 ELE - 32243 BA A2 5148 - 140,340 252,13
Furniture and fixtures 8441 792 - 102.33 1232 952 - #2235 7398
OHice equipments 3783 1543 - 532 1388 a.66 - 2275 2B57
Machinery Foundatian 073 - - 0.73 037 0% - 0.56 iy
laboratory Equipmants as7 . 057 017 0.0% - 026 a3
Camputars Y- 2740 - gh.32 2708 2043 - 4751 418
Wehicles 25869 16.86 33555 BE.19 41.58 - 10776 22139
Eeasehold Improvemants
- on Plant & Machinary - 23646 236,46 - .78 - a1 23638
- on Building - 132,54 - 15254 - 0.4 - 014 13240
15.240.43 P 492888 2.714.66 1.857.45 - 451211 20,356,177
Fooinotes

{i} Flease refer note 44 for capits] commitments,

4ii) There are no impairmen! lossas recagnisad for the year anded hiarch 31, 2024 and March 31, 2623,

{iit) There are na exchange diffarences adjiustad in Property, plant & equipment.

tivy Al property, plant and equipment, are subject to charge againgt secured harrowings of the Campany roferved in notes as secured lenm loans fram banks, vehicte loans from banks and finanoal institations,
working capital demand loans frem banks and cash eredit limit fecire banks. |refer nate 22 22 & A9).

{y} During The year Flant andl Equigimand Factoty Sheds and Building include Interest Capitalised amcunting Rs. 57.63 |akhs and inventory tapdalised amounting to Rs. 88.18 lakhs
Dutinng $he Provious year The Plant and Eauipment and Factory Sheds & Burlding include interest capitalized amounting to As 148.53 lakhs and inventary capitalized amounting to Bz 324,16 lakhs

il The title deeds of all the immevable aroporties (ather than properties where the conipany is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessea), are held in the name of the

campany, oscepl for the Tallowing:

Whether
promotar,
directar ar thair | Raasen far not being held in the neme of the Company
Groas carrying relative or
Deseription of the Property [value (7 Lakhs)|Held in the name of employes
L T el Dine Stasls India Private & Ona Steels India Private Limited amalgamated inte A-Dne Steels India Private Limited
i Limited N tarmerly knawn as A-Cne Steels and aloys Private Limited)
Euildin 30768 A Qne Steels India Private A {ne Steels |ndia Privake Limited amakgamated inko A-One Steels India Private Limited
uieing o |Liemited Mo Harmerly knawn as A-One Steals and Alloys Private Limited)
Land T 11510 Aaryan Hitech Steels India Aaryan Hitech Steels India Privake Limited amalgamated into A-Cne Steebs India Private Limited
) Frivate Limited Mo {farmerby knawn as &-Cine Steels and Alloys Privabe Limited)
Buildlern 129.07 Aanyan Hizech Steels India [Aaryan Hitech Steels India Privabe Limited amalgamated into A-Cne Steels India Privake Limited.
i ) Private Limited Mo tformerby knovm as A«Ume Steels and Alloys Private Limited)

Space imtentianally 89 blank..




A-ONE STEELS INTHA FRIVATE LIMITED
{formerly known as "A-Qne Steel and Alloys Private Limited")

Motas to the al fi 1 for the yoar ¢ended March 37,2024

Al amount are i § Lakfs | ueiess otheneise stated)

4 Gther lntangible assats

Current year "'_;_G_rn_w_s_i_al_gngk fatrost) . Accumulated amoriisatl Met blaek
hs at Additi Disposalf As at asat Additions Dispasal/ As af Az at
April 1, 2023 dn_rin_g thg year __ Adiustmemi _[W_ar(h_ 31, 2024 April 1, 2023 during the year  Adjustment  March 31, 2084 March 31, 2024
Software 7434 a1g - B2.44 045 2742 5151 2453
) 7834 a0 - 82.44 30.43 1742 - 5791 2453
Erevious year firosz block {at coat) A lated _ _Nathleck
As at Additlons Dispasalf Az at Az at Acldit|ans Dispesalf LR F.L¥Y
April 1, 2022 during the year Adjustment March 31, 2023 Aprll 1, 2023 during the year  Adjustment  March 31, 2021 March 37, 2023
Softwars 5283 2551 - 7834 565 24.80 - 3049 4785
S2.82 2551 - 7a.34 568 24.80 - 2045 47.85
Faninotes:
(i} There are no internally generated intangible assets.
{if) The Company has not carried out any revaluadon of intangible assats for the year ended March 31, 2024 and 3arch 37, 2023,
(i} Thete are no other restricion on tile of inkangible assexs.
{lv} There are no exchange differences adjusted in intangible assets.
{v} The Company has not acquired intangitde asseks free of charge, or for naminal consideration, by way of a government grant,
& Right-of-use assets
Particulars Land Land and Flant and Total
Euildi hinery
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1.15 542 52 550814 6.151.80
Additiens on account of new lease contracks enterad inko during the year - 58H.06 470447 524253
Depreciation charged far the year - 5707 [a82 BN 1539.74)
ther adjustments = Terminaticn, Rermeasurements, Madification atc. (118) [45.26) (366.21) 1435.63)
Ealance as at March 37, 2022 - 1,025.23 944315 10, 46595
Balznee as at April 1, 2023 - 1.025.23 T443.73 10,468.55
Addiuens on azecuni of new lease contracts entered inta during the yesr -
Depreciation charged far the year - (62.33) (51864} (58057}
Cither adjustments - Tarmiration, Remeasuraments, Modification et -
Balanca as at March 31, 2024 - 562.50 8,925.0% 5,587.59

Focinote:
Please refar note 54 for detarls of assets ghven on operating leasa

- Bpace Mttty 0 blais
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B-CIME STEELS INCIA PRIVATE LIMITED

{formarly known as "A-One Steal and Alloys Privats Limited™)
Motes to the Standal

financial skat

(AN amount are in T Lakhs, unloss otfionwise stated)

te for the year endad March 31,2024

& |Czpital work-in-progress Bs at Asat
IMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning 3160 12878
Addition duving the year: 9,974.21 11,001.40
12,%35.81 11,2308
Capitalised during the year
Capitalization (7.976.41) (2,318.55)
5.009.40 3,011.60
Footnote:
Capital work-in-progress agzing
Particulars Bs at As i
March 31, 2624 March 31, 2023
Projecis in pregrazs
Less than 1 year 4E56.75 296188
1-¢ years 10292 -
2-3 years - -
Mare than 3 years - -
495867 2.967.83
Praject Tempararily Suspandad
Less than 1 year - 15.00
1-2 years 1500 -
2-3 years - 1500
Mare than 3 years 34.72 19.72
48,72 49.72
Prajects are being executed at a differant lacations invalving common procurements tharefore project wise identification wrt Capital Wark in progress is not feasible,
The CWIP is as par the management plan and estimate
7 |Investmants in subsidiaries Mo of Shares Asg at As at

March 31, 2024

Iiarch 21, 2023

(i} Investments carvied at Cost:
Equity instruments in subsidiary companias

Unguated
Vanya Steels Private Limited CY:1,51,60,166 (PY:1,51,60,166)shares of Rs 10 each B5008 85008
A Qne Gold Singapore Pte. Ltd - Shares Afc C¥:1,000 (PY:1,000shares of ks 56 each 056 056
A-One Gold Pipes And Tubes Private Limited CY:49,99% (PY.49,99%shares of Rs 10 each S.00 500
A-One Gold Steels India Private Limnited C¥:49,9599 (PY.49,999 shares of Rs 10 each 500 .00

860.64 3a1.64
Footnotas:

{iy Carrying value and market value of quoted and unguoted investments are a3 below:
Az at As at
March 24, 2024 Rarch 31, 2023

Book value of ungucted invastrments BE0.64 BE0.64

.. Space intentionally feft blank...




A-ONE STEELS EMDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

tfarmerly known as "A-Dne Steel and Alloys Private Limited")

Motas to tha Standal i ial stat s for the year ended March 31,2024
AN amaount are wt § Lakhs, unlass ofharwise stated)

Mo of Shares

A at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Unquoted(Measured at FVTOLD
Wyshalt Energy Private Limited
Atria Wind Powaer (Bijapur 1} Private Limited

Radiance Ka Sunshine Five Private Limited

CY:32,450 (PY:32450 kshares of Rz 10 2ach
CY:3,14,675 {(PY:3,14,675 § shares of Rs 221 each
CY:1,27.40,000 (PY:1,27 40,000 ) shares of Rs 10 each
C47,60,000 {PY47,60,000 ) shares of Rs 10 sach
CY:56,00,000 {PY:56,00.000 ) shares of Rs 10 each
C¥:73,50,000 (PY:73,50,000 ) shares of Rs 10 each
CY:1,83.205 (PY.1,83.205 ) shares of Rs 262 each
C¥12,00,000 (PY 12,0004 ) shares of Rs 20 each
C¥.3,39.000 {PY:Nil } shares of Rs 47.2 each
C¥:1,22,53,800 (PY:18,85,200 ) shares of Rs 10 each
C¥8,40,000 (PY:Mil ] shares of Rs 10 each

Radiance Ka Sunshine Six Private Limited
FP Suraj Private Limited-Share Afc
Green Infra Clean Solar Energy Limited
Atsia Wind Power Private Limited

Blyth Wind Park Private Limited

Egan Solar Private Limited

Green Infra Clean Wind Power Limited
FPEE {elestical Private Limited

325 325
696.94 536.54
1.274.00 127400
47600 A476.00
560,00 560.00
73500 73500
48100 48040
240300 240.00
16401 -
1,225,358 188,52
8400 -
5,934.58 4,553.71

Focinoies:

fi

Carrying value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:

Book value of unguoted investments
Market value of unquoted investiments

{i} Faor explanation on the Company's cradit risk managemant process, refar noie 53.

(iii} There are no significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.

Ag at
March 31, 2024

5,934.58
5%934.58

A at
Miarch 31, 2023

465377
4,653.71

() The Company had invested in equity shares of Vyshali Energy Private Limited, Atria Wind Power (Bijapurl} Private Limsted, Radiance Ka Sunshine Five Private
Limited,Green Infra Clean Wind Power Limited, Radiance Ka Sunshine Six private Limited, FP Suraj Private Limited, Green [nfra Clean Solar Energy Limited, Atria Power,
Blyth Powar, Egan Scolar Power and FPEL Celestical Private Limited far pracurement of power towards captive consumption in Bellary, Gauribidanur and Hindupur units.

The management anticipates that the termination of contract in future {if any) would be at cost i.e. the amount invested. The investmant has been made only for

precuring the power and not for any finandal benefit. However, considering the above facts, cost of investment has bean considered as its fair value which is same as

book value.

% |Leans (nen-curent)

Az at
Biarch 31, 2024

Az at
March 31, 2023

Unsecurad, considered good

Loans to Subsidiary companies 1,154.01 1.074.25
1,154.01 1.074.25
Footnotas:
(i) For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 53.
{ii} Forinformation required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 refer note 46,
T0 |Sther financial assets (non-current} As at s at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecared, considsrad good
Security deposits 185546 165868
Advances for investmearnts 3,800.00 345000
Deposits with Banks (Maturity mora than twelve menths) 214415 20874
7,723.61 7,137.42
Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 53.
Abeve depasits with banks are held with bank as security in relation 1o repayment of borrowings (refer nete 22 and 28)
11 |Mon-current tox zssets (net) Az ot fisat

Rizrch 31, 2024

iarch 31, 2623

Income tax refundable

7256

£6.68

72.36

5E.68




A-OME STEELS INDES PRIVATE LEMITED
(forrnerly known as "A-Onz Stecl and Alleys Private Limited”)

Motas to the Standal financial stat

s for the year ended March 31,2024

(AR amount are i § Lakhs, unless atherwisg siated)

2 |0ther non-current assets As at Asat
arch 31, 2024 iarch 31, 2023
Prepaid lease rent 90.2% 4892
Prepaid royally 0.87 362
Prepaid expenses 198.9% 54.22
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advancas 55633 86330
845.48 1.029.58
13 [trwantortes Az at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Valued at lower of cost and net realisablz value
Raw materials 1302819 2053203
Storas and spares 291641 1,832,660
Finished goads 2585844 18371.81
Goads in transit 111358 1,605.41
Valuzd at estirated realisable value
By-product 1.676.50 1.061.91
44,583.73 43,403,382
Fooincies:
inventaries are hypothecated as securities for borrowings taken from bamks (refer nete 49).
Good in Transit includes Raw materials, Stores and Sparas ete
Finished goods also includes Semi Finished Goods.
14 [Trade receivables &z at Ax at
Bfiarch 21, 2024 iarch 31, 2023
Unsecared - a1 amariized cost
{i} Trade receivables — considered good 5373247 3446357
{ii} Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk 512.63 300.23
Less: Impairment loss aligwance (1,101.19) 97722}
53,143.91 23,792.50
Fooinokas:
{i} The Company has measured expected cradit lass of trade receivable as per Ind A5 109 *Financial Instruments’ {refer note 53},
{ii) Trada receivables are hypathecatad as sacurities for borrowings taken from banks [refer note 49).
{iii) For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 53.
{iv) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally received in the Company's operating cycle.
{v) For trade receivables due from director or other officer of the Company and firms or privale companies in which any directar is a partner, a director or 2 membear
either jointly or severally with other persons, refer outstanding balaness mentioned in note 51,
{wi} Tezde receivabl i (outstanding frorn date of
tranzaction) )
Particulars Asat Asat

Miarch 31, 2024

Wiarch 37, 2023

Unsecurad - at amertised cost

Undisputed Yrads Receivalles — considered good
0-6 months

6-12 menths

1-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3 years

Undizputed Trade Receivabies — which have significant increase in credit risk
6-12 months

1-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3 years

Disputed Trade Receivables « which have significant inerease in credit visk
5-12 manths

1-2 yoars

2-3 years

More than 3 yaars

Less: Impairment loss allowance

5257722 33,052.00
30612 570.88
46821 36184

86.72 484.79
29420 -
38319 22.89
AN 2175
188.02 4145
2123 21412
(1,101.19) 1977.22)
53,143.91 33,792.50




A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

{formerly known a5 "A-One Steel and Alloys Privats Limited"}

Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 27,2024
(Aif ameount are in T Lakhs | uniess ofhonwiso stated)

15 |Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2622

|Balances with banks

- in eurrent accounts FO2.75 3,192.21
Cash on hand 6425 121,59
Funds balares for denvative financial instruments - 108,54

T67.00 3,422.34

6

[Bank batances oiher than cash and cash eguivatenis

As ok
iarch 31, 2024

Asat
Tfarch 31,2023

Dreposits with maturity more than three menths but less than twelve menths 6,227.90 412694
Deposits having original maturity of less than 3 manths 1,236.25 2.026.68
LC margin maney - 0,76
7,464.15 5,154.38
Footnote:
Above balances sre held with bank as security in relation to repayment of borrowings {refer note 22 and 28).
17 |Loans {eurreni) Bz ai Ax ai
Tflawch 371, 2024 Fiarch 31, 2023
Lnzzeurad, considarad good
Loans to
- Employeaes T242 £1.64
72.42 51.64
Foolnotes:
(i) For explanation on the Company's eredit risk management process, refer note 53,
18 |Gther financial assets (currend) B at Az at
Mareh 37, 2024 Riarch 21, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 163,27 64.56
Earmest maoney deposits 1.35 4817
Accrued interest on fived deposits/Deposits 12473 41,84
Derivative Financial Azsets {ingl Margin balance) - 208,84
Other Receivables * 37020 145243
565.55 1,815.84

Footnod=;
For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer note 53,

* The above receivales are en account of compensation towards shortage of power/electricity supply from power generating companies/distribution companies

19 |Gther current assets Asat As at
March 31, 2024 ferch 21, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to supphers 24.371.98 20,677.09
Prepaid lease rent 677 506
Prapaid royalty 237 208
Prepaid expenses 0054 1.002.6{
Balanee with governmeant authorities 293278 89523

27,914.44 22,582,655




A-QMNE STEELS INDILA PRIVATE LIMITED
[formerly inown as "A-Onz Stael and Alloys Private Limited™)
Mates ta the Standal ial for the yaar ended Warch 312024
[AE armeumt ave 013 Ladls, winiess otherwise stated)?
20 §Share capital As at As at
Rigreh 37, 2024 March 21, 2023
1. [Equity Share Capital
The Campany has enly one class ol share capital having a pa valus of 3 100 per share, referred ta horein as equity shares.
Authorised shares
36,650,000 b areh 31, 2023 36,50,000) shares of ¥ 100 each 385000 3,650.00
11860000 b arch 31, 2023 1 1,00,000) 0,01% Man Senlative Mo £onvertible Redeemable Preference shares of ¥ 100 sach 1,100.00 1.100.00
Taotal 4,750.00 4,750.00
[ssued, subscribed and fufly paid-up shares
16,73,722 W acch 31, 2023 16,73,722) shares of ¥ 100 each 167372 167378
I'otal 167472 167352
fii). Reconciliation of the shares autstanding at the beginning and end of tha year
s at Agat
March 31, 2024 Flarch 31, 2423
Humbaer Hurnber
Zhares outstanding at the beginning of the year 16,73,722 18,7372
Zhares wsued during the year - -
Shares cutstanding at the end of the year 16,73,782 16,173,722
Terma/rights attached to equity shares
Voting Eack sharsholcer is entitled to ane vore per shars held
Dinlclends
The Company declares and pays dividends ir Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Crectars is subject to approval of the sharehalders in
ensuing Annual General Meeting ewcept in the gase where interim dividend is distribured. The Company has nat distributed any dividend in the curient and
Devious year.
I the event of liquidation of the Compary, the sharehalders shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential smounts, if any. Such distribution smaunts witl be in properion ta the rumber of equity share: held by the sharehaldars.

fivk. The Company has no holding campany

). Detail of sharchofders hulding mare than 5% of equity share of the Campany
Hama of sheieheldirs As at As al Bz pt Ay at

March 21, 2024 Rarch 31, 2024 Marel; 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Mumb Percentags Mumbar Fercentage
Sandeap Kumar 6.11,898 3B35% 041808 38.35%
Sunil [allan EO2504 35.40% S92.504 35.40%
Krishan Kumar |alan 4,393z20 26.25% 439320 26.25%
16.73,722 100405 16,73.722 108.00%

il Ag per the Scheme of Amalgamation of the Transferor Cempanies will be merged with the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company by paying difference fee after setting off
the fee already paid by the Translarer Companies on its respactive capital Carsidering the above, after ¢elubbing of autharised share capital of Transferar Comparies with the Transferee
Company. the authorsed and patd ub share capital of the Transferee Company as follaws:-

Partheulars | Authorised Shara {Authorised Sharz |Paid Shave Capital |Pald Share Capital aftesr
Capital befors Capital after baf tioni tioning of Sck {in
ctioning of ctioning of  |of Sl Hn Rz} |Rst
Schemo {n Re} | Schems (In Ry)
A-ane Seels India Private Limited 1.580.00 - 1.26317 -
Aaryan Hitech Steels India Private Limited 758.00 - B22.80 -
A-one Steels B Alloys India Private Limited 1,504.00 3,730,060 1,300.00 167372
Drescription and number of shares issued, togethar with the Ind AS 103, Busi Combinations p of each entity's equity shares exchanged to effect the business
comhinztion;
Particulars A-one Steols India Pyt Ltd Rarvan Hitech Steels India Pyi Lid
Pra Acquisti Post Aoquisti Pre Acguisti Past & i
Mo of Shares sutstanding as en March 31512027 1363170 - £2,28,000 -
Mao. of Sharas issued by Transferee to the Transferer R 280,488 R 53,234
0 acpoynt of Restryctying,

fuii). Mo dazs of shares have baen allotted as fully pad up pursuant o contract(s) withaut payment being received in cash, allohed as fully paid up by way aof
bonus shares ar bought back during the periad of 5 years immediately preceding the Balaace Sheat date.

{wiii}. As per the arder passed by the Hon'ble TNCLT, Bergaluru Bench vide CPICAR) No24/BE/2022 dated 22nd Movem ber, 2023 u/s 230-232 of the Companies
Act 2012 For approvieg the S¢hema of Amalgamation [*Sehame®} of A Gne Steels India Private Limited {Transferar Company Mo. 1) and Aaryan Hitech Staels
India Private Limited (Transferer Company Ma. 2} with A-One Steal and Alloys Private Limited (T Camg the Transt Conpany has issued 1
[One} equity shares of Rs 100/~ each fully paid-wp in the Teansieiee Compary for evary 486 equity share of R2.100/- sach Rully paid up held by the
sharelwolders in the Transferar Company=1 and 1 (Cne} equity shares of Rs. 100/~ aach fully paid-up in the Transferee Company for every 86.80 equity share
of Rs. t = each fully paid up held by the shareholders in the T I -z

{ix}. An aggregate of 3,73,722 equity shares of Rs. 100 each were issued pursyant %o amalgarmation, withaul payment being radeivsd in agh in immediztely

praceding fiv years arded Marel: 21, 2024 (previons pariad of ue yesrs endad March 31, 2022 = 3,73,722), (Refar note 56)




A-OME STEELS IMDIA PRIVATE UMITED
(formerly krown as "A«One Stee] and Alloys Private Limitad™}
Mates to the dalon fi lal for the year ended March 31,2024
(A8 armcuind are n & Lakhs, woless offierwise siatedi
tx}. Details of ogulty shanss held by Prometers gt the end of year

Mame of prameaters A nt k- Az ak
March 31, 2024 change March 31, 2023
Number Percanthge Number
Sandesp Kurmas 541292 38.35% L% 541,598 38.35%
Sunl Jalian 532,504 3540% % 592,504 3540%
Krishan ¥umar Jalan 439320 26.25% L% 4,319,320 26.25%
16,73,722 100% 16,73,722 100%

txi}. Mo shares are =eservec to be izsued under aplicns and conlracts! commitmenls lof the sale of shares/ disinvestmant.

{xii). 0.07% Mon Cumulative Hon Convertible Redeemakble Freference shares of 10,0000 of Rs 100 sach have been issued an privake placement basiz at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting datad 9th March

023 for & pesiad of 14 yrars

21 pother equity As en 371-3-24 Asan 371-3-23
{Total} iPravious Year}
{it. fRetained earnings
[Dpening balance Z70a3m 18,209.63
[Steel indigffeyan - Charges in Tar - 4941
Profit for the year 251876 283487
Diwvidend paid during the year 0160 -
Clazing balance 20,711.77 RT0%307
fii). |Securitins promium
Cpening balance [5F) 2,352.00 2.35200
Additions during the year - -
Clasing balance 2.352.00 | 2,352400
fterns of other comprehensive income
Opening balanee (0]} B2.06 Th4
Acditions during the year (5.73) 12.62
Clasing balance 33.33 .06 |
fiv] |Cepital Reserve
Opening balance [C7) 161225 1481225
Additions during the ypear - -
Chasing balance 1,612.25 1461225
32,759.35 31,146.42

Nature and purpose of ather equity:

H). Retained eamings
Retained earnings represents the surplusf Jdeficit) in profit and loss 2ccount and appropriations

{ii}. Securities premium
The amaunt received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Sacurities Premium. it can anly be utilised for limited purposes in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

tiii}. ltems of other comprehensive income

R af equity

The Cormpany bas elected to racagnise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive mcome. These change:
ara accumulaced n the FYOC! equity investments resarve. The Company transfers ameunss from this resorve to votained earniregs when the relevant equity
securities are derecoghised o sakl Any Inpai lass on such i is tetlassified o the Statement of Profit and Loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obfigation
The Campany recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net deiined berefit liability as part of other comprelengive income with separate
disclosure, which comprises af:

+ actuarial gains and loszes;

= return on plar aszets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability; and

« any eharea in the effect of 1he asset caifing excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined banefit liability.

(ivl., The ewess of fair value of net assets aequited over considerstion paid in a comman control transaction is recognised as capital reserve

- SERe eeetionat loft Blank..




A-COME STEELS ENDLA PRIVATE LIMITED

(formerly luiown as "A-One Steal and Alloys Private Limited")

Meotzs o the Standalons finangial etat ts for the ya2ar ended March 31,2024
(AN amount are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22 |Borvowings (non-current) Ar at Ax at
) March 31, 2024 Mlarch 31, 2023
|Gecuved - st amortized cot
Term loans:
- froorn banks 1253256 10717240
- from financial instituzions 2,097.28 3,000,080
Less: Current maturities 4,526.03) {3.808.24)
Vehicle and equipment laans:
- from banks 14230 73.13
Less: Current maturities (35.98) (18.06)
Sales Tax Deferment Laan 1,72132 123809
Unsecured - ot arortised cost
Loans from directors 459245 4,299.37
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Preference Shares:
- from Preference Shareholders 42339 38221
16,247.79 15,883.60
Fooinote:
For terms and Conditions refer note 49
Far explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management pracess, refer note 53,
For Related Party Transactions refer note 51
23 |Lease liabilities (nan-cureent) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 21, 2023
Lease habulities - Non Current 11.104.17 11,285.80
11,1047 11,285.820
Faotnote:
for explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 53.
Refer Nate 50 far Laasa liabilities
24 |Other financial labilities (non-current) As at As at

March 37, 2024

March 31, 2023

[eposits from agents

227433

2,105.86

2,274,232

2,105.86

Footnote:
Fer explanatinn on the Company's liquidity risk managemant procsss, refer note 53,




£-OME STEELS EMDEA PRIVATE LIMITED
{formerly fmown as "A-One Steel and Alloys Privats Limited"}

Metzs te the Standalons financizl stat ts for the year endad March 31,2024

A amount are in T Lakhs, unfess otherwrse stated)

25 |Provizions (non-current) A3 e As at
[arch 37, 2024 Wiarch 37, 2023
Provision fer employes benefits
Pravision for gratuity 29730 206851
Browisian far Cempensated Abserses 46.7% -
343.89 208.51
26 |Deferred tax liabilities (net) Hs at B at
Miarch 31, 2024 Wiarch 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 26115 32801
281715 328.71
Refer Mote 55
27 |Other nen-current liabilities As at As at
fifiarch 37, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred fair value gain on account of deposits from agents 36607 549.09
Deferred fair value gain on account of oan from directors 1,193.1 1,589497
Deferred fair value gain on account of Preference Shares 49222 553.98
Deferred fair value gain on accaunt of Sales Tax Deferment Loan 1,785.61 150151
3,836.21 419455
23 |Bowowings [currentt Az at As ai

Mavch 31, 2024

arch 31, 2023

|52cred - 2 amortisad cast

Waorking capital loan from bank {refer footnates i) 21.172.21 21,659.93
Cash credits from banks 955347 963399
Bills discounted payable {Secured) 1757416 17,15695%
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 22) 456201 3,826.40
Unseeurad - at amerised cost
Loans from Dihers 343 11.87
Loans fram Directars 5.075.26 217.01
Bills discounted payable {Unsecurad) 9,881.96 17,738.99
67,822.5¢ T0,247.14
Footncis:
() For tarms & conditions, repayment and nature of security given, refer note 4%
{ii} For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management pracess, refer nate 53.
29 |Lzaso liabilities (currant) s at A at
Miarch 31, 2024 Riarch 31, 2023
Lease Fabilities 197.50 209.85
197.50 209.35
Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 53.
Rafer Mate 50 for Lease liahilfties
30 Trade payshles Az at fig ot
March 31, 2824 March 21, 2023
(i) tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises LEAR D 30195
tii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smakt enterprises 36,197.78 17.213.42
{iii} total sutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enferprises -Disputed Duss - -
(iv total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises-Misputed
Dues - -
3E,763.82 17.515.37




A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(farmerly known as "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited")

Notes to the Standal

financial stat ts for the year ended March 31,2024

(Al amaount are in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)

(0]
(i)

Footnotes:

For disclosures relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 refer note 47.

For explanation an the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 53,

{iii) Trade payables ageing
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Less than 1 year 541.96 301.80
1-2 years 29.00 015
2-3 years 0.15 -
More than 3 years 5 &
Dues to others
Less than 1 year 3537431 1710789
1-2 years 406,30 35.05
2-3 years 41275 B4.44
Mare than 3 years 442 6.04
36,768.39 17,515.37
{iv) Trade payable of Rs 36,768.89 Lakhs as on 31st March 2024 is inclsuive of unbilled dues amounting to Rs 2792.27 Lakhs
31 |Other financial liabilities (current) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Payable for Capital Goods 52585 551.52
Employees related payable 23241 351.55
758.26 903.07
Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 53.
Wrt Payable for Capital Goods Rs 18,28 Lakhs is pertaining to MSME.
32 |Other current liabilities As at As at
March 37, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance from customers 15,400.28 2,769.06
Deferred fair value gain on account of loan from directors 862.20 397.98
Deferred fair value gain on account of deposits from agents 183.01 183.01
Deferred fair value gain on account of Preference Shares 61.76 61.76
Deferred fair value gain on account of Sales Tax Deferment Loan 21895 168.28
Statutory dues payable 77312 371.83
17,499.32 3,951.92
33 |Provisions (current) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refar note 48) 8.64 6.14
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 48) 143 -
10.07 6.14
34 [Current tax liabilities (net) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current tax liabilities (net) (refer note 55) - 271.75
o 27T1.75

...5pace intentionally left blank...




A-QME STEELS MDA PRIVATE LIMITED
{formedy known as "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited"}
Motas to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 21,2824

Al amount are in F Lakhs, unless otherwive stated}

For the year anded | For the year ended
35 |Revenue from opzrations March 31, 2024 Miarch 219, 2633
Sale of products 3,48,975.16 2,82,93783
Other operating ravenues
Expart incantives 0.74 26.91
3,48,975.90 2.82,964.74
Sales of Preducts includes Sale of Traded Gaods amounting ta Rs 112,963.97 lakhs (PY-Rs 93,391.05 lakhs)
Information required as per bnd 85 11%: For the year anded  For the year ended
Miareh 37, 2624 March 31, 2023
Disaggregated revenus infermation as per gacgraphical markets
Revenue from cusiomers based in India 34362789 2.81,692.80
Revenue fram customers based outside India 5343.01 1.271.94
Tirming of revenue recogrition
Transferred at a point in time 3,48,975.50 282,964 74
Transferred over time - -
Tinde receivables and contract assetsf{liabilitias) .
Trade receivables 53,1439 33,722.50
Contract liability {Advance from custormners) 15.400.28 2.769.06
Periormance abligation and remaining parformance abligation
There are no remaining performance obligations for the year ended March 31, 2024, as the same is satisfied upon delivery of
goods/services,
36 | Other incomes Far the year emded | For the year ended
Warch 31, 2024 Miareh 31, 2023
Rental income 638 339
Interest income
- on loans given to related parties 8363 142.26
- on fixed deposits 506.63 218.94
- on security deposits 26.80 24,57
- an security deposits using EIR method 2191 2010
- on deferred fair value gain on Depoesits from Agents 183.03 183.03
- an late payment from customers 321 13.10
- on deferred fair value gain of unsecured loans 399.59 132.12
- on Reyalty using EIR method 2.38 1.85
- on others - Interest Income 90.34 20.84
- on deferred fair value gain of Preference Shares 61.76 1.86
- Unrealized Gain on Fair Valuation of Derivative Financial Assets - 75.65
- on deferred fair value gain of VAT Laan 171.88 12.96
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 505 -
Profit on Commodity Hedging 663.85 113.92
Fareign exchange fluctuation gain 155.21 -
Miscellaneous ingome 547 5.37
2,425.52 BE9.96




A-0ME STEELS MDA PRIVATE LIMITED

{formerly known as " A-One2 Sieel and Alloys Private Limited”)
Motes to the Standalons finencral statements for the year ended Mareh 31,2024

(AN amount are in T Lakhs, unfass othenwise stated)

37

Lost of materizls consumed

For the year ended
Waech 31, 2024

For the year andad
Miarch 31, 2023

Opening stock of raw material

Add: Purchases

Add: Freight, transportation and loading chargeas

Add: Liguidated Lamages

Add: Impert expenses and high sea purchase expenseas
Add: Royalty expenses

Add: Handling charges

Add: Compensation cess

Add: Custam duty

Less: Closing stock af raw material

23.970.10 9,197.62
2,87.722.3 2,52,364.30
11.929.36 8,344 68
1.268.16 -
2,550.70 1,348.89
631,57 920,49
244389 101153
82472 724,02
1,044.66 30392
(17.058.1% {22,970.10
3,15,227.28 2,50,245 35

The Campany pracures the raw material with an intention to use in the manufacturing pracess however hased on the opportunities available the
company wants to make sale of the raw material. Therefore the entire purchase is shown under Cast of Matarial Consumed.

38

Changes in inventories, finished geods and weork-in-progress

For the year endad
Mearch 319, 2024

Far the yeor erded
iarch 21, 2023

Cpening stock

Rarch 31, 2024

*-Finished Goods 18,371.81 1141343

"By Products 1.061.91 37946
Clasing stock

"-Finished Goads {25,858.44) {18,371.81)

-By Products {1,676.50) {1.067.91)

{3,1017.22) {7,540.83)

32 | Employee benetit expenses For the year ended | Fer the year ended

Miarch 3, 2024 Mizreh 31, 2023

Salary, wages, bonus and allowances 2,89%.15 2,338.77

Emplayers' contribution to provident and other funds 80.72 55.90

Gratuity 101.82 82.66

Staff and labour welfare 215.16 123.75

3,296,835 2,801.68

40 | Fimance costs For the year ended 1 For the year ended

Margh 21, 2023

Interast expenses

- on borrowings

- on lease liabilities

- on late payment of statutory dues

- on fair valuation of Agents

- an fair valuation of Royalty

- on late payment to suppliers

- an fair valuation of Preference Shares

- on fair valuation of Unsecured toans

- on amortized loan processing fees

- on fair valuation of Security Deposits

- on fair valuation of Sales Tax Deferment, Laan
Other borrowing costs
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised during the year

5776.38 3,376.31
904.37 960.36
134.75 228.31
168.47 155.9%

247 -

232.35 Fie
4118 1.24
389.12 117.84
16.04 2418
25.59 2641
113.80 852
441.14 500.78
{13640} (14853}
8,089.26 5,528.57




&-OME STEELS MDA FRIVATE LIMITED

{formerly krown as "&-Cne Steel and Alloys Private Limited")

Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31,2024
(AN amount are in ¥ Lakhs | unless othenwise stated)

41 | Depreciation and amariisation axpensa For the vear endled | For the year ended
March 39, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on Property, plant & equipment {refer note 3) 260682 1,857.45
Amortisation of intangible assets {refer nate 4) 2742 24.80
Depreciation on Right of use of asset {refer note 5 580.97 539.74
321521 2,421.99
42 | Diher exprnses For the year ended | For the year ended
March 21, 2824 Pizaech 37, 2023
Powar and fuel 17.071.65 12,519.90
Qutside labour charges 1,669.04 1,300.04
Export expenses 576.14 35.76
Packing, freight, forwarding and handling charges {outward} 1,309.51 453.78
Seeurity charges 144.71 125.72
Commission expanses 187.02 23598
Royalty expenses 450.69 397.35
Rent and hire charges 889.50 596.40
Insurance 7053 47.68
Travalling and conveyance 214.87 148.08
Advartisement and business promaotion expenses 1,302.67 1,154.22
Legal and professional expenses 439.20 474,01
Charity and donations 19.70 32.80
(SR expenses 23235 7415
Repair & mairtenance
-Plant and machinery 606.01 296,38
-Buildings 0.40 -
-Others - Rapair & maintenance 136.51 117.93
Impairment of trade receivables 123.96 45541
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss - 125.98
Sundry balances written off/ Bad dehts 85.72 047
Rate & Duties 131.71 189.45
Miscellaneous expenses 33135 284.48
25,993.24 12,065.97
Fostnate:
Payment of remuneration to auditors (excluding G5T) For the year endetl  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Miareh 31, 2023
- as auditar
» for statutery audit 10.00 10.00
« for tax audit 2.00 2.00
12.60 12.00
..5pace intentionally left blank...
43 Eaming par share For the year endad  For the year ended

(a). Baziz and diluted earnings per shave (in absalhste figures)
From continuing operabions attributatle to the equity holders of the Company

(b}, Reconciliations of earnings usad in calculating earnings per share

Baziz emrnings per shara
Prefit fram continuing operation attribuiable to the equity share holders

Profit attributabla to the equity holdsis of the campany used in caleulating basie and

{e). Waighied average numbar of shaves wsed as the denominsior

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in caleulating basic

and diluted earnings per share

The Company has not issued any instrument that is potentially dilutive in the future. Hence, the wardi
outstanding at the end of the year for calculation of basic as well as diluted EPS is the sama, f

areh 31, 2024

farch 37, 023

156.46 527.86
2,618.76 883487
2,613.76 §,834.87

16.74 16.74

wimber of shares




A-OME STEELS IMDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerdy known as " &-Dne 5teal and &loys Private Limited")
Metes to the standalone financial statemnenis for the year ended March 31, 2024

(& amount are in 7 Lalths , unless otherwrise stated)

44 Cantingent lizhifities 2nd comimnitments Az at Az at
Riarch 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

In the erdinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such clairns and assertions and
monitars he legal envirenment an an en-gaing basis with the assistance of external lagal caunsel, wherever necessary. The Campary records a liability
for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For
potential losses that are corsidered possible, but nat probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does nat record a
liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probabla.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a petential loss is possible, but not probable. The Company believes that none of the
contingencies described below would have a material adverse effect an the Company's financial eondition, results of operations or cash flows.

Li¢igations
The Company is invalved in legal proceedings, both as plaintiff and as defendant. There are daims which the Company does not believe to be of 2
material nature, other than these described below:

GST matters (refer fostnote i) 87.66 1315
Income tax matters (refer footnaote i 6.320.07 5.298.61
Vehicle - 619
On account of Brand A04.02 D402
Guarantees

Wanya Steels Private Limited (refer footnote i) 17,760.00 17,760.00
A-One Gold Pipes & Tubes Private Limited (refer footnote iv) 5.850.00 5,850.00
Karnataka Renewal Energy Development Limited {refer footnote v) 95.00 95.00
Department of industries & Commerce {refer footnote vi} 37889 291232
Radiance Ka Sunshine $ix Private Limited (refer footnote vii} 22850 -
Radiance Ka Sunshine Five Private Limited (refer footnote viil) 614.25 -
FP Suraj Private Limited {refer footnote ix) 8625 -
Assistant Commissioner of Customs, Gopalpur Port (refer footnote %) 199.48 -
Assistant Commissioner of Custems, Haldia Port {refer footnote xi) 283.16 -
Egan Solar Power Private Limited (refer footnote xii) 55.30 -

Capital convmitrments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided far (net af 1,182.37 1,83593
capital advances of (Rs 556.33 lakhs March 31, 2024). (Rs 863 3 lakhs March 37, 2023).
Footnotes:

{it Contingent liability with respect to lncome Tax matters s for search action conducted under Section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other
demands raised from Income Tax Department from time to time.

Na:::t‘::;he Nature Forum where the dispute is pending Pe;:z::tu:;::;;he Amo:::h[:}s' n
Income  (First Appellate Authority, High Pitched Assessment AY2014-15 to

The Income- |tax BY2021-23

Tax Act, 1967 [Aszpssrm
ent 6,320.07

(i} Centingent liability with respect to G5T matters is for demand order under GST Act.
Following are the forums, where the disputes are pending:

Na:::t:::ha Nature Forum where the dispute is pending Pear::::z::::t:r‘e Amo;ﬂ;r::)s' n
Goods and  |Appeal  |Deputy Commissioner FY2017-18 and £9.44
Services Tax F¥2019-20

Act, 2077

Goods and | G5T Dreputy Commissioner Fy 2019-20 4.1%

Services Tax |Assessm

Act 2017 ent
Goods and  [GST Assistant Cormmissioner F¥2017-18 to FY2019- 1403

Services Tax |Assessm 20
At 2017 ent

.Space intentionally left blank...




A-OME STEELS [MDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{(formerly known 25 "8-One Stesf and Abloys Private Lirmited”)

Motes io the standalons financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amount ave in ¥ Lakbs | unless othenvise stated}

..Continued from previous page

{iii) The cormnpany has issued various corporate guarantess to various Banks and Financial Institutions far barrowings obtained by its wholly owned

subsidiary Yanya Steels Private Limited aggregating to Rs 17,760 lakhs in Py 22-23,

{iv) The company has issued various corporate guarantees to various Banks and Financial Institutions for borrowings obtained by its wholly owned

subsidiary A-Ong Gold Pipes & Tubes Private Limited aggregating ta Rs 5,850 fakhs.

(w) The company has issued bank guarantees to Karnataka Renewal Energy Developmant Limited aggregating to ¥ 95 lakhs in FY 20-21.

{vi) The cormpany has issued bank guarantees to Department of Industries & Cormmerce for availing Sales Tax Deferment Loan aggregating to ¥ 2971232

lakhs in FY 22-23 and 876.59 in FY 23-24 respactively,

{vii) The company has issued bank guarantees to Radiance Xa Sunshing 3ix Private Limited aggregatieg to ¥ 229.5 lakhs in FY 23-24.

fvili) The company has issued bank guarantees to Radiance Ka Sunshine Five Private Limited aggregating to ¥ 614.25 lakhs in FY 23-24.

{ix} The company has issued bank guarantees to FP Suraj Private Limited aggregating to 2 B6.25 lakhs in FY 23-24.

(x} The company has issued bank guarantees to Assistant Commissioner of Customs, Gopalpur Port aggregating to ¥ 199.48 lakhs in FY 23-24.
(xi} The company has issued bank guarantees to Assistant Commissioner of Customs, Haldia Port aggregating to ¥ 283,16 lakhs in FY 23-24.

(xii} The company has issued bank guarantees to Egan 5olar Power Private Limited aggregating to ¥ 55.3 lakhs in FY 23-24.

45  Expenditure on C5R activitias

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend., in every financial year, at least two per cent of average met profits of
the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy in respect of activities specified in

Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The detalls of CSR expenses for the year are as under:

Ameunt required to be spent during the year
Shortfally {excess) amount of previous year
Total

Amount spent during the year on

- construction/acquisition of any property, plant and equipmeant

- purpases other than above
Total

Shartfallf (excess} amount carried forward to next year
Details of related party transactions

Footnote:
Matura of CSR activities

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

205.53 1248.94

{0.59) {55.62)

204.94 74.32

23235 74.91

232.35 74.21

{27.4T) (0.59}

The amount has been spent on various activities such as education and health care which are mentioned in Schedute VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Information required under Section 186{4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Guarantees

The company has issued various corporate guarantees to various Banks and Financial Institutions for borrowings obtained by its wholly owned
subsidiaries Yanya Steels Private Limited and A-One Gold Pipes & Tubes Frivate Limited aggregating to ¥ 23,610 lakhs. The beneficiary companies have
used ameunt of borrowings for their principal business activities.

Loans
The Campany has given long-term loan to its wholly ewned subsidiary A-One Gold Pipas & Tubes Private Limited, having outstanding balance ast at
31st March 2024 is amaounting to ¥ 1,154.07 lakhs. The subsidiary has used this fund far its principal business activities.

In terms of Section 22 of Chapter V¥ of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act, 2006), the disclasures of
payments due to any supplier are as fallows: ’

As at As at

March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest due theresn remaining unpaid to any MSME supplier as at the end
- Trade payables 541,52 2726
- Payable for Capital Goods : 18.28 185.36
- Interast dus on above 29.14 29.19

58%.39 487.31

The arount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the| - -
amaunts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 2ach accounting year,
The armounts of the payments made fo micre and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each 560.19 45812
accounting period.
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment {which have been paid - -
but beyond the appointment day during the year) but without adding the iInterest specified under the
MSMED Act, 2006,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 2919 2919
The amaunt of further interest remaining doe and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 2839 28,19
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small erterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
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48 Employees benefits
I.  Defined centributian plans:

The Company makes contrbutions, determired as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident
fund and labour wealfare fund which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions.

The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and logs as they acerue,

Exp under defined contribution plans indud
For the year ended For the year anded
March 31, 2024 WMarch 31, 2023
Emmployer's contribution to provident fund 54.04 3645
54.04 36.4%

1. Pefined benefit plans:

-

Gratuity
The Cormpany operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan antitles an employea to racaive half month's salary for each
yaar of comnpleted service at the time of retirement/axit

The prezent value of obligation i3 determined hased an actwarial valuation using the projeeted unit credit method, which recognise each period of
service as giing rise to additional employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separataly to build up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity wera caried ot as st March 21, 2024 and March
31, 20£3. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
projected unit credit methad.

A, Net defined benefit liability/{asset) As at As at
March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of abligations 0574 212,85
Fair value of plan assets - -
Total emplayee § fit Rabilies/( H 305.74 212.65
Mon-current 29730 20651
Current B.64 614
B. The details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the t: guized in the fi ial stat ts as at March 3%, 2024 and March
21, 2023 are as fallows:
Particulars Az at Asat
March 21, 2024 March 21, 2023
Change in defined fit obligati
Benefit abligations at the baginning of the year 21265 14520
Service Cost 8140 51
Interast expense 1598 1081
Past service east — plan amendments - -
Rermeasurements - Actuarial {gains) losses 166 [16.87
Benefits paid [11.95) -
Benefits obliged at the end of the year - 105.74 272.65
€. The amcunt for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 r fsed in the of Profit and Loss account under employee
k fit exg is as ol H
Particulars Far the Year Ended For the ¥ear Encded
March 3%, 2024 March 31, 2023
Serviga Cost a81.40 FG.51
Mat interasi on the net defined benefit ia 1598 ALiX:Y ]
Plan Amendments - -
Nat gratuity cost 97.38 #1.32
Foot Mote:

The company also made an incremental expenses ameunting to Rs. £.43 Lakhs (PY: Rs. T.3d Lakhs) on account of employess wha [2ft during the year
and not coverad inthe actuarial valuation at the balanca shest data.

D. The amaount for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 r ised in the of athar prehensive i is as
follows :
Pacticulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 3%, 2024 March 31, 2022
R of tha net defined
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to demographic assumption changes in DBC (€10} 000
Actuzrial (gains) / losses due to Financial assumption changes in DECH 2387 [A.88}

11612} {1180}

T.65 {16.87)

Actuzrial [gains) / losses due to experience adjiustment an DEC
{Return) [ess an the plan assets due to dizcaunt rate
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Plan assets

Ag at As at
Plan assets comprises of the following March 31, 2024 Warch 31, 2023
Total plan assets - “
Funds managed by insurer - -

% of Plan assets - -

Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growih rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on governmenit
bonds at the aceourting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increace rate takes into accaunt of inflation, seniority, pramation and
ather relevant factars an lang term basis. Yaluation gssumptions are a¢ follows which have been salacted by the Company.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2022
Discount rate 715% 7.5%4 One Steels Indis Pvt
Ltd- 7.45% HUP Division -
7.50%
Expected rate of future salary increase 0% for the first three years  10% for the first three years
and 7% thereaftar and 7% thereafter
Expactad rate of attrition 1% - 3% 1% - 3%
Martality EALM 201214 IALM 2012-14

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible ¢hanges at the reporting date to one of the relevant aciuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affacted the defined benefit obligatian by the amounts shown below:

March 21, 2024 WMarch 31, 2023
Increasa Decrease Incrense Decropse
[iscount rate {1.00% movement) 260.07 35304 181.1% 252,12
Future salary growth {1.00% movemant] 389,35 26142 250.82 181.00
Attrition rate {30.00% movement) 0432 30697 21204 21305
WMertality Rate {10.00% movernent} 305.81 305,67 21272 212.58

Sensitivities as 1o rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensians in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not
applicable baing a lump sum berefit on retirement.

Description of Risk Exg

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as
follows:

a). Salary incraase: Ackuasl salary increases will inereaze plan’s liability, Increase in salary increase rate assurnption in future vatuations wil! also increase
the liabilivy,

b). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’e liabiliey.
). Martality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities

d}. Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals praving higher or lawer than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact the plan's liakility,

Expoeted maturlh Iysis of the defined & fit plans in future years
Duration of defined benefit okligation As at As at
March 21, 2024 March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year B854 6.14
Between 2-5 years 42,27 LR
Between 6-10 years 59 54.47
Qwver 10 years 1,188.88 59328
Total 1,316.78 989.06

-Space intenfionally left blank,.,
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L. Defined benefit plans:

2 Earned Leave Plan

The Company operates an Earned Leave Plan. This plan entitles an employee right to accumulate and carry forward his leave to a future period or

encash the leave.

The present value of abligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognise each period of

service as giving rise to additional employee benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the Leave Liability for Leave Encashment were carried out as at March 31, 2024. The
present value of the Leave Liability and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit

As at
March 31, 2023

method.
A. Net defined benefit liability/{asset) As at
March 31, 2024

Present value of obligations 48.22
Fair value of plan assets -
Total employee benefit liabilities/(assets) 48.22
MNon-current y 46.79
Current 1.43

B. The details of the defined benefit plans and the amounts recognized in the financial statements as at March 31, 2024 and March 31,

2023 are as follows:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year e

Present Value of Obligation at the end 48.22
Fair Value of Plan Assets ”
Surplus / (Deficit) _ (48.22)

Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any -

Net Asset / (Liability) | (48.22) .
&l The amount for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2022 recognised in the stat t of Profit and Loss account under
ployee benefit exp is as follows : ’

Present value of obligation as at the beginning i
Present value of obligation as at the end 4822
Benefit Payment ”
Actual return on plan assets =
Transfer In / (Qut) ”

48.22

D. Plan assets

Plan assets prises of the following As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Total plan assets N
Funds managed by insurer =
% of Plan assets e
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Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on
government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities, Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority,
promation and other relevant factors on {ong term basis. Vafuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Company.

Az at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate 7.15% -
Expected rate of future salary increase 10% for the first -
three years and 7%
thereafter
Expected rate of attrition 1% - 3% -
Meortality 1ALM 2012-14 -

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, halding other assumptions constant, would have

March 3%, 2024 March 21, 2023
Increase  Decrease Inerease Decrease
Discount rate {1.00% movement) 40.87 5751 - -
Future salary growth (1.00% movement} 57.38 40,83 - -
Attrition rate {50.00% movement) 48.32 4810 - -
Mortality Rate (10.00% movenent) 4822 4821 - -

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expeciancy are
not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Drescription of Risk Exposures:

Waluations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as
follows:

a}. Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increasa plan's liability, Increase in salary intrease rate assumption in future valuations will alse
increase the liability.

b}Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan‘s liability.

c}. Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or figher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

d). Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations
can impact the plan’s liability.

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in futuve years

Duration of Leave Liability As at As at
March 31, 2624 March 31, 2623

Lass than 1 year ' 1.43 -
Between 2-5 years . 619 -
Betwaen 5-10 years 12.34 -
Over 10 years 199.43 -
Total 279.44 -
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48 Terms & conditions, repayment and nature of security of nt and current b ing!
U]
Lender Name Loan Amount of Loan/ Interest Rate Tenure EMI Start date Amount ing as at
Sanction Limit {in manths) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-eurrant
|Secured term loans from banks (rafer footnote ji to v, vii)
HOFC Bank Limited Loan 1 1,000.00 9.15% 1] January 7, 2008 - 2016
HDFC Bank Limited Loan 2 1.500.00 9.45% 64 {inchuding & months Nev T, 2018 - 16468
maiatonium)
HDFC Bank Limited Loan 3 2,538.78 10.05% BB Months July 7, 2013 1,109.06 147643
HDFC Bank Limited Laan 4 247000 9.25% 62 (indluding 12 months March 7, 2022 1.329.51 1,905.60
moraterium)
HDFC Bank Limited Loan § 7,000.00 910% 60 {induding & manths Mareh 30, 2023 5345.96 6,899.03
moratorium)
HDFC Bank Limited Loan & 3.500.00 911% 50 Months September 30, 2023 312826 =
HDFC Bank Limited Loan 7 37390 925% 49 {including 12 months March 7, 2022 12903 25124
moratorium
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Loan 8 148684 S.00% 102 (including 18 months) August 10, 2025 1.490.74 =
imoratarium)
Tata EEH Financial Services Limited Loan 9 3.000.00 10.25% 36 May 5, 2033 209728 3,000.00
Total term loans from banks 14,629.84 13,717.20
4 wehicle loans fram banks (refer f wi & vii}
HDFC Bank Limited Loan 10 20.59 B50% 60 March 7, 2018 - -
HOFC Bank Limited Loan 11 1828 9.25% &0 September 5. 2018 - -
HDFEC Bank Limited Loan 12 10.00 9.50% 50 July 7, 2019 - -
IDFC First Bank Limited Loan 13 4000 9.98% B0 s ber 2, 2021 2332 30.84
HODFC Bank Limited Loan 14 10,05 T50% 36 Decemnber 7, 2021 241 589
HDFC Bank Limited Loan 15 96.99 882% 6O August 5, 2023 8690 -
HDFC Bank Limitad Loan 16 3832 T91% 80 Decemnber 05, 2022 2957 3640
Total vehide loans from banks 142.30 313
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Sacured loans from Govt (vefer footnivke ix)
Sales Tax Deferment Loan {at amortised cost) Loan 17 3,788.91 0.00% After 10 years 1,721.82 1,238.09
1. 131.82 1,238.09
Ungecured Joans (rafer footnets wii )
From related parties {at amartised cost} Loan 18 Q.00% 1 to 4 years MNA 4,592 45 4,299.37
4,592.45 4.299.37
Prefovente Shares: (refer footnsis x)
- from Preference Shareholders (at amortised cost) Loan 19 1,000.00 Q.00% After 10 Years 423.39 382.21
Tots] non-currant bamrgwings 21,5062.80 15, 712.00
Llender Marna Loam Brnount of Loan/ Irterest Rate Tamure EMI Start date Arnount cutstanding as at
Sanction Limit {in months) Farch 371, 2024 arch 31, 2023
Currant (refer foctnate o)
Weyking capiial d A Ioens from banks
HOFC Bank Lirmited Loan 20 5,073.00 B.88% Repayable on Demand MA 8,120.87 8,108.71
Indusingd Bank Limited Loan 21 6,000.00 B.15% Repayable on Demand A 5, 000.00 5,500.00
Axis Bank Loan 22 3,000.00 B.65% Repayable on Demand MA, 3,000.00 4,000.00
Bank of India loan 23 5,100.00 9.98% Repayable on Demand MA 2,551.34 2.551.22
iCICI Bank Loan 24 1,500.00 B.65% Repayable on Demand MA 1.500.00 1.500.00
Total Waoebing capital d d ksans from banks 21,172.21 21,659.23
Lash credits from banbe
HOFC Bank Limited Loan 25 5,427.00 8.88% Repayable on Demand A 430012 £,05534
HOFC Bank Limited Loan 26 2,000.00 9.39% Repayable on Demand A 1,952.68 1,930.94
Bank of India Logn 27 3.400.00 9.98% Repayable an Demand NA 901.98 1.569.23
Axis Bank Loan 28 1,000.00 9.50% Repayable on Demand WA 65,466 -
ICIC] Bank Loan 29 1.000.08 9.55% Repayable on Dernand NA 932.03 978.48
Total Lash cradits from baals 9,553.47 2,633.92
Bifls o ded under L
HDFEC Bank Lirmited Loan 30 5,700.00 Repayable on Demand WA 5503.15 555899
HODFC Bank Limited Loan 31 500.00 Repayable on Demand R EY 47817 35365
ICEC] Bank Loan 32 10,000.00 Repayable on Demand A 9,864.09 042891
Axis Bank toan 33 4,000.00 Repayable on Demand NA 1,728.75 1.817.40
Total Bills discounied under LE 17.574.16 17,158.95
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Unsecured loans {refer footnote vii )

From related parties {at amortised cost) Loan 18 2.00% Less than 1 year MA 5,078.69 228.87
5,078.63 228.8T7

Bills discounted under TReDS

RXIL Lpan 34 16.000.00 Repayable on Dernand NA - 14,630.45

Total Bills discounied under TReDS - 14,636.45

Other Bill discounting Fagifity . -

Poonawala Finance Loan 35 10,000.00 Repayable on Demand NA 9,881.96 3,108.52
Total Other Bill Dizcounting 3,881.98 3,108.52
Total Current Borrowings 63,260.49 B6,425.72
Total Borrowings B4,770.29 865,130.72
Footnotes:

(i) Security given for Term loans to HDFC Bank Limited, indusind Bank Limited, 1CIC] Bank Limited, Bank of india, &xis Bank Limitedilean 1 To 7)

Primary:
- Hypothecation of inventories and trade recaivables of the Company
- Bxclusively charged Fixed deposits with respactive bank
- Movable fixed assets of the Company

Lollateral:
- Mortgage of varicus immeovable properties held in the name of the Company
- Morgage of various immovable properties held in the name of the Personal Guaranters

Persopal Gusranize:
Bromoters
- Sunil |allan - Director
- Sandeep Kumar - Director
- Krishan tumar Jallan

Collateral Property Cwners
- Priya Jallan
- Mona Jallan
- Daya Jallan
- Rakesh lallan
- Pardeep Gayal
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(ki) Security given for loans from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Loan 8}

Primary:
Properties exclusively financed by Kotak Mahindra BANK

Personal Guarantee:
Promotars

- Sunil Jallan - Director

- Sandeep Kumar - Director

{iv) Security given for loans to TATA Capital financial services Limited(Loan 9)

Prrimary:
- Fixed deposits

Collateral:
- Mortgage of Property bearing Sy Mo, IP 84 in the name of the company
- Mortgage of Various Immaovable proparty in the nama if Guarantors

Personal Guarantee:
- Sunil jallan - Director
- Sandeep Kumar - Directar
- Krishan Kumar Jallan
- Priya Jallan

Pledae of shares
- Pladge of total 10% Unancumberad shares of company in the name of Mr Krishan Kumar Jallan { Guarantor)

(v) The Company has availed working capital loan ,cash eredit facility & Bill Discounting facility from banks and others{Loan 20 to 353)
{vi} Sacurity for vehicle loans from banks and financial institutions (Loans 10 to 16)
Yehicle loans from HDFC Bank Limited and YDFC First Bank Limited are secured by way of Hypothecation of the ¥ehicles financed by the lender.
(wii} Secured term [vans and vabice loans from banks are inclusive of current maturities.
{viif) Unsecurad loans from related parties and others are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost in accordance with Ind AS 109 {Loan 18},
{ix} Sales Tax Deferment Loan has been raceivad from the government whose repayment is due in next 10 years and Bank of India has given gurantee by keeping fixed deposits of equivalent amount as security (Loan 17).

(x} 0.01% Non Cumulative ,Non Convertible Redeemable Preference shares of 10,00,000 of Rs 100 each have been issued on private placement basis at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated 9th March 2023 for a
period of 10 years {Loan 19}
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B0 Leases

A. Leasex &k a lessee

1. Non-exempted leases

(i Movement in lease liakilities A at Acat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 1148575 £,723.02
Additions on account of new leaze contracts entared inZo during the year - 528152
Finance cost accrusd during the year 904,37 850,36
Paymant of lease hiabilities (1,0098.44) (1.034.87)
Madifications in leage habilities due ta change in lease term - (43448
Closing balance 11,301.68 11,495.75
(i) Break-up of current and non-current leare liabilities As at Ae at
March 31, 2024 Mareh 21, 2623
Current bease [abilities 197.50 209,85
Men-current Jease liabilitias 11,104.18 1128580
11,307.68 11,495.%5

i} Maturity anzlysiz of lnase liabilities

The details of contractual maturizies of lease liabilities as at year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

As at March 31, 2024
Lease payments Finance charaes Net presant value
Commitments for lease payments in relation ta non-exempted leases are payable as follows:

- not later than one year 1,i51.58 454,08 197.50
- latar than one year and not [ater than five years 4,654,660 2,64096 101370
- later than fiva years 20,136.62 1004610 10.090.52

25,242 86 14,64%3.14 11,361.T2

As st March 31, 2023

Lease payments  Finance charges Net present value
Commitments for lease payments in relation to non-sxempted leasas are payable as follows:
- not latar than one year 1058.44 04 37 18407
- later than one yaar and not later than five years 460188 371843 gR344
- later than five years 21,397 56 10,97%.32 10,418.23
27,097,838 15.602.12 17,495.74

Lontinued on rext page
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livd

{v)

{wi)

0]

{iEy

A t recoginised in the stat t of profit and lass Forthe year ended  For the ywar ended
March 31, 2024 March 21, 2023
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 55047 53974
Finance ¢osts on lease listilities 904.36 260,36
148533 1,500.10
Amount retoginised in statement of cash flows Forthe year encded  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow frem financing activities *
Payment of lease habilities 1,098.44 1,634 87
1,008.44 1,034.87
For reconciliation of carrying armount of right-of-use assets and details thereof refer note 5.
Exempted leases

The Company has recognised ¥ 372.26 lakhs as rent expenses during the year {previous year ¥ 223.10 lakhs) which pertains to short term lease/ low valua asset
which was not recognised as part of right of use agsset.

Lenses as a lessor
Operating leases
A t recoginizad in the stat t of profit and loss Forthe year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 21, 2023
Rental income fram assets given on sperating lease 6.38 339
538 3.39
M ity tysis of lease 1 bl
The details of contractual maturities of lease regehables ac at year end on undisecounted basis are as follows:
As at Az at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mot later than cne year 638 339
1-2 years - 339
23 years - -
3-4 years - -
4-5 years - -
6.38 678

Footnote:
The Company has sub-leased a part of its head office building situsted at A-One Houss, Mo, 326, COAL Layaut, Ward Na. 8, Sahakar Magar, Bengalury,
Karnataka - 5600492 ta fallowing campanies:

1. Vanya Steels Private Limited - Subsidiary

2. A-Dne Gald Steels India Private Eimited - Subsudiary

3, A-One Geld Pipes and Tubes Private Limitad - Subsidiary

4, Shri Gouri Shankar |alan Charitable Trust

5. A-OMNE GOLD RETAL!L PRIVATE LIMITED

...Space intenfionaly left blank..
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51 Related party disclosuras

The related parties as per teims of Ind AS 24 "Relazed Party Disclesures”, specified under Section 133 of the Campanies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Campanies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 are disclosed below:

A. List of related parties where contrel exists and/or with wham transactions have taken place

Subsidiaries Mame of Company Coungry of % of Holding % of Holding
Incarporation March 31, 2024 March 3%, 2023
Yanya Steels Private Limitad India 95 7% 100%
A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Lirited India 1% 100%
A-0ne Gold Steels India Private Limited Indiz 10:0% 100%
A-One Gold Singapore Pre. Ltd Singapare 10:0% T00%

Enterprises in which person, whe
exercise cantrol over the Company,

Bellary Tubes Corporation

have significant influence ar

central or isfare KMP
Key iMznagzment Personnel (KMP)

Laksh Steels
Sunil Jallan

Whale Tirme Director

Sandeep Kumat Diractor
Mannj Kumae [Resigned on 12th June 2024} Director
Umnashankar Goyanka Dhirector
Pooja Sara Nagaraia Cornpany Secretary

Relatives of KMPs

Mana Jallan

Wife of Director

Krishan Kumar |alan

Fathar of Whale Time Directar

Priva Jallan

Wife of Whele Time Director

Enterprites in whith Directors are
Interestad

Shii Gouri Shankar [alan Charitable Troust
A-One Gold Retail Private Limited

B. Transactions with related parties during the year are as following: -

Nams of Related Party and Mature of Transactions For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Sale of goods (net}

Vanya Steels Private Limited §,552.95 4,850.44

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limitad 31,53666 15.086.89

Ballary Tubes Corporation 9.061.3¢ 5,390.76

Laksh Steels 265848 4,098.25

A One Gold Singapare Pre Ltd 4,196.08 -
Purchase of goods (net}

Wanya Steels Private Limited 1181153 2141314

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 23,799.02 6,507.49

Bellary Tube Corporation 14, 71263 10,429 37

Laksh Steels 10427 36 11,528.35

4 Ona Gold Singapars Pte Ltd 2.246.36 331232
Purchase of CWIP

Wanya Steels Private Limited 2187 -

A-Ona Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limnited 1763 -

Laksh Steels 1585 -
Rental income

Wanya Steals Private Lieitecd 1.80 180

A-Cne Gold Steels India Private Limited 150 150

A-Cne Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 150 1.50

Shri Goun Shankar Jalan Charitable Trust 0.56 -

A-Cne Gold Retail Private Limited 102 -
Interest income on koan given

A-Cine Gofd Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 58.63 12181

A-One Gold Singapare pte. Ltd - 2045
Handling charges income

Bellary Tube Corporation 26.30 -

Wanya Steels Favate Limited - 854
Transportatian Charges income

Wanya Steels Private Limited - s0.73
H F on borrowing

Eunil Jallan 23275 57.14

Sardeep Kurmar 13625 3632
Interest expanses on lease liabilities

Sandeep Kumar 7.45 763

Mona Jallan 745 763

Wanya Steels Private Limited 0.31 043
Barrowings taken

Sunil Jallan 366850 352200

Sandeep Kumar 4,072.50 323950

Krishan Kumar [alan - 1500

A-Cne Gold Singapare pte. Ltd - 101736




A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

{formery known as “£-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited")

Motes ta the standalone fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Borrowings repaid

Sunil Jallan 1.261.62 1,308.08
Sancleep Kumar 122089 1,236.38
Krithan Kuma: [alan B.0% 1%6.05
A-0ne Gald Singapore pte. Ltd - 1.027.05
Payment of lease liakilities
Sandeep Kumar XA 500
Mana Jallan 2.60 820
Purchase of Investments
A-One Gold Pipes and Tuhes Private Limited B0 -
Balance putstanding with or from related parties as at:
Name of Related Party and Nature of Balances As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 37, 2023

Unsecured barrewings

Sunil Jallan 4521.20 232392
Sandeep Kumar 4,743.07 1,988.31
Krishan Kumae |alan 344 G444
Laase liahifities
Sandeep Kumar B4.54 B3.57
Mona Jallan 84.54 8957
Director rernuneratian payable
Sunil [allan 416 GB.97
Trade teeeivables
A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 7,859,490 #8363
Beltary Tube Carparation 80688 2,185.07
Laksh Steels - 1.862.05
A-One Gold Snaapore Pre. Lid 149521 42047
Receivable an account of reimbursements
A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited 719 408
Advance to Supplicr
Beflary Tube Corporation 237582 -
Trade payables! Ad from
Vanya Steels Private Limited 714522 1,25%,84
Lakzh Steels 461808 -
Nan-turrent loans
A-Cne Gold Pipes and Tubes Prvete Limited i,154.07 1074.25
Investment in Subisidary
Wanya Steels Privato Limited BS0.08 250.04
& Dne Gold Singapaore Pie. Ltd - Shares Afc 056 056
A-Ore Geld Pipas And Tubes Private Limited 500 503
A-One Geld Steels india Private Limited 500 5.00
Corporato guarantee giveni{Uncxocuted)
A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 5,850.00 583000
Vanya Steels Private Limited 17.760.00 17.760.00
Parsanal guarantes taken
Sunil Jallan 79,025.84 20,180.00
Sandeep Kumar 79,029.84 80,180.00
Mona [alan 74,543.00 7718000
Priya Jallan 7754300 80,180.00
Daya Jallan 74,543.00 F1180.00
Krizhan Kumar Jalan T.543.00 80,180.00
Cam ion of Key M ial B |
The compensation of directors and other member of Key Managerial Personnel during the year was as follows:
MName of KMP Nature of Compensation For the vagr ended  For the year ended
March 37, 2024 March 21, 2022
Sunit Jatlan Shart kerm ermplayes benefits 14400 144.00
Mlanoy Kumar Shori term employes banefits 2400 1600
Sandeep Kumar Short term employee banefits 2000 12600
Urna Sharkar Goyanka Short termn employee benefits 1803 1325
Krishan Xumar Jalan Short term employas banefits 6000 60,00
Priva |allan Short term employee henehis S4.0¢ 54,00
Poaja Sara Magaraja Short term emplayes henefitz 7.00 £.40
2760 413.65




A-ONE STEELS INDHA PRIVATE LIMITED

{formerly known as "A-One Stes] and Alfoys Private Limitad™}

Motes to the standalone financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amount are in ¥ Lakhs , untess otherwise stated)

52 Segment information

The Company publishes the standalone financial statemants of the Company along with the cansolidated financial statements. In accordance with nd AS
108, Operating Segments, the Company has disclosed Lhe segment information in the consolidated financial statements.

.. Space intentionafly feft blank...




£-GHE STEELS INDIA PREVATE LIRAITED

(formeriy known as “A-One Steed and Alloys Private Limited")

flotes te the siandalons i izl stat e for the year ended Farch 3T, 2024
(A armount sre in 7 Lekliz , unless otherwise stated)

52 [Fair value measurement zod fnancial instruments

a).

—

Financial instrurments — by category and fair values hievarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levals in the fair value hiararchy.

As at Wiarch 31, 2024 Fair value measurenant using
FYTOCH FYTPL Cost Amorised cost Total Lawal 1 Level] 2 Leve] 3
Fimancial nszots
Mon-cureng
Investments 5934.58 - B360.64 - 6,795.22 6.795.22
Loans ) - - - 1,154.01 1,154.01 1,154.017
Other financial assets - - - 7,799.61 7,799.61 7.799.61
Luresint
Trade receivables - - - 52,1439 53,142.91 5314391
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 767.00 767.00 767.00
Other bank balances - - - 7,464.15 7.464.15 746415
Loans - - - 7242 72.42 7242
Other financial assets - - - 665.55 665.55 665,55
Total 5,934.58 B60.84 71,586.55 T7,881.87 T7.861.87

Fimancial kabilities -

Mon-cureent -

Borrowings 16,947.79 16,547.79 16,947.79
Lease liabilities 11,104.17 11,104.17 11,104.17
Other financial liabilities 2,274.33 2,274.33 2,274.33
Turrairt
Borrowings : 6782250 £7,822.50 67.822.50
Lease liabilities 197.50 197.50 197.50
Trade payables 36,768.89 36,768.89 26,768.89
Othar fmancial liabilities 758.26 758.26 758.26
Total 1,35, 873.44 1,35,873,44 1,35,873.44

Cantinued an next page
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ts for the year ended March 21, 2024

Bs at March 31, 2023 Fair valua measi L using
FYTOCR FWTPL Cost Arnortised cost Total Lawval 1 Laveal ¥ Laveal 3
Financial assets
Mon-current _
Investments 465371 860.564 - 5,514.35 5,514.35
Loans - - 1,074.25 1,07425 1.074.25
Other financial assets - - 713742 713742 713742
Lurrent
Trade receivables - - 33,792.50 33,792.50 3379250
Cash and cash equivalents - - 342234 342234 342234
Othar bank balances - - £,154,38 6,154.38 6.154.38
Loans - - 61.64 61.64 61.64
Other financial assets 1,815.84 1,815.84 1,815,834
Tokal 4,653.71 360.64 53,483,137 58,972.72 58,872.72
Financial liabilitias -
Mon-curent
Borrowings 15,883.60 15.883.60 15,883.60
Lease liabilities 11,255.90 11,285 .90 11,235.80
Other financial liabilities 2. 105.86 2,105.86 2,105.86
Lurrent
Borrawings 70,247.14 70,247.14 70,247.14
tease ffabilities 20985 20985 20925
Trade payables 17,515.37 1751537 17.515.37
Other financiat liabilities 903.07 903.07 40307
Total 1,18,150.72 1,18,150.75 1,15,150.79
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Fair value hierarchy
Level 1: 11 ineludes financial instryments reasured using quoted prices

Level 2: The tair value of firancial instruments that are nat traded i an active market is determined usng valuation techniques which maximise the Use of chservable market
Zata and rely as httlz a5 possitle on entity specfic estimates. If all significant mputs required to fair valee an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in lavel 2.

Leval 2: If ore ar more of the significant inpute s not based on chsorvable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, The fair value of financial assals and liahilities
included in Level 3 i determined in accardance with generally accepted pricing maodels based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
trangactinns and cealer quates of similar instruments,

The carcying amaunts of trade receivables, cash and cash aquivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the faie values, dus to their short-term nature. Fair
value of financial assets and financial Tabilities is similar to the carmying value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

Yaluation progesses
The Management perfarms the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for finandial reporting purpeses on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair valuas.

b). Financial risk management
The Campany has exposure ta the following risks arising frem financial instruments:
* Credit risk
+ Liguidity risk
= Market risk

(). Credit risk
The maximarm exposure to eredit risks is representad by the total carrying ameurt of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:
Particulars As ot As at
Rlarch 31, 2024 Rarch 33, 2022
lnvasiments 593458 465371
Investments in Subsidiaries 86054 860564
Trade receivables 53,143m 33,792.50
Cash and cash equivalents TETO0 342234
Bank balances other than essh and cash equivalents FARS 615438
Loans 1.226.43 113589 |
Other financial assets 246516 8953.26 f

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to tha Campany if a custemer or counterparty te a financial instrurnent f2ils to meet its contractual cbligations, and zrizes princpally from
the Cornpany's receivables fram customers,

The Campany's credit risk 1s prirmarily to the amount due from customers and loans. The Compaty maintains a defined eredit policy and menitors the axposures to these credit
Fisks on an amgeoing basis, Credit risk an cash and cash equivalents is limited as the LCompany generally invests in deposite with scheduled commercial banks with high eredit
ratings assigned by domestic cradit rating agencias.

Financial instruments that are subject to credit sisk ard eancentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, lnans receivables, balances with hank, bank depesits, and
financial guarantess provided by the Compary. None of the financial instrurments of the Campany result in material concentration of credit risk except Trade receivables, The
Comnpany's exposure to customars is diversified, In respect of financial guarantees provided by the Company to banks/financial institutions, the masimum exposure which the
Company is expoased to is the maximum amount which the Company weuld have to pay if the quarantee is called upon, Based on the expectation at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it i mere likely than net that such an amount will not be payable under the guarantees provided.

The maximurn exposure to the credit nisk 21 the raporting date is primarily from trade receivables, Trade receivables are unsecured and are darived fram revenue sarned fram

customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the ecancmic enviranment in which it operates and the Company manages its Credit risk through credit

approvals, establishing credit limits and continuousfy menitaring credit worthiness of customers ta which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business, i

On adoption of ind AS 104, the Campany uses experted eredit Ioss model to assess the impairment lass or gain. The Compary establishes an allowsnce for impairment that
represents its expected crecit losses in respect of trada receivable. The management uses a simplified approarh {ie. based on lifetime ECLY far the purpose of impairment lass
allowarice, the Company estimates amourts based an the business envirenment in which the Company operates, and management considers that the trade receivables are in :
default icredit impaired) when courter party fails to make payments a3 per terms of sale/service agreements. However the Company based upan historical experience determing i
an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

When a trade receivable is credit impaired, it is written off against trade recaivables and the amaunt of the lass is recagnised in the incame statement. Subsequent recoveries of ,
amaurts previously written off are credited to the income statement.

The gross carrying amount of trade rareivables is disclosed in Note 14
The Company belisves that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by mere than 30 days are still cellectibls in full, based om historical payment behaviour,
The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Particulzrs Asat Az at
ifarch 21, 2024 TWlarch 31, 2023

Less than #0 days past due 5042691 31,490.22
A to 180 days past due 215031 1,561.78
TED-365 days 24437 59377
365-720 days 54232 38359
Mare than 720 days 731.25 74036
Total 54,245.10 34,769.72

. Continued on next page
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(i),

(i),

Meovameant in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade raceivables; For the year ended  For the year ended
21-Mar-24 31-iviar-23
Balance at the beginning 1977.22) {521.37}
Impairment lass recagnised (F2357} 145547}
Impairment loss utilised - -
Balance at the end {1,101.1%) (977.22)

Liquidity rislc

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations ssseciated with its financial liabilities that are setlled by delivering cash or anolher
financial asset The Company's approarh to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as passible, that it will have sufficient liquidity te meet its liabilities when they are Fallen due,
under both normal and strezsed conditians, without incurring unacceptable losses or risiing damage 1o the Company's reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficiant eash and markatable securities and the availabifity of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to

meet obligations when due. The Company's policy is to regularly moniter its Tquidity reguirements to ensure that it maintsing sufficiert resarves of cash and funding from

Company companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the shart and lang term.

The Company's liquidity management process as monitered by management, includes the fellowing;
'S lig! p Y q

- Day ta Day funding, managed by menitaring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.

- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Campary's liquidity position on the basis of cxperterd cach flows,

Expesurs to liquidity risk

The following are tha remaining contractual makurities of financial Nabilities at the reporting date:

Carryin Contractusl cash flows
As at Miarch 37, 2024 M Between onc to Mere than
amount Lazs than ane year Total
five years five years
Borrowings 84.770.28 67,522.50 1471907 222787 2477028
Lease lisbilities 11,301.67 197 50 [RER 1¢.090.4'¢ M3 67
Trade payables 3676889 36,768 82 - - 36.768.89
Cither financial liakilities 30325% 3432.5% - - 303259
Tatal 1.25,873.43 1.407,821.48 15,733.E61 12,318.34 1,35,873.43
. Contractual cash flows
As st March 11, 2023 Camying Betwean one to Maore than
amount Lass than ene year Total
five years five years
Borrawings £6,130.74 70,2474 1426230 1.620.30 £6,130.74
Lease liabilities 1149575 194,08 AA344 141822 11495375
Trade payables 1151537 1751537 - - 1731537
Other financial liabilities 300893 300853 - - 3008593
Total 1,18,150.7% 20,955.52 15,146.74 12,038,523 1,15,150.7¢

WEarket risk

tarket risk iz the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate beeauss of changes in matket

prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk; interest rate

tick, currancy risk and ather price risk, the Campany maisly has exposure to twa type of market risk namely: curreney risk and interest rate risk. The ohjective of market risk
managedment is to manage and conirol market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

o Loniinued o next page
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a. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk thal the future cash Yows of a financial instrument will fugtuate because of changes in markel interest rates. The Campany's main interest rate risk,

arisgs from larg-torm borrowings with vatiable rates, which sxpase the Company to cash flew interest rate risk,

Exposurea to interest rate risk

The Company's interest raze nsk arises majorly frorm the term loans fom banks carrying floating rate of interest. Thase abligations exposes the Company to cash flow inlerest rake

tisk, The exposure of the Campany's bormowing ko interest rate changes as reperied o the managemant at the end of the reporting period are a5 lollows:

Variable-rate instruments

Termn lnars fram banks & Fls

Warking eapital demand loans from banks
Cash credits from banks

Bills discounted under LC

Bills discounted uncder TReDS

Total

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the expasure o interest rates at the end of the reporting peried,

Asat Asat
31-Nar-24 March 11, 2022

477214 1373033
2117221 21.659.53
955347 963399
17.574.16 17,158,485
5,881.96 17.738.9%
72,953.94 79,932.19

Far floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assurning the amount of the liability outstanding st the end of the reperting pericd was outstanding fer the whale year. A 50

basiz point increase or deerease i used wher reporting interest rate risk internally to key manage mant personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasanably

possible change in interest rates.

Equity. net of tax

50 bps increase

50 bps decreaze

Profit or lazs
56 bps increase 50 hps decrease

Term leans fram banks & Fls

For the year ended March 21, 2024 [73.85) Ti86

Fer the year ended March 31, 2023 B8.495) £8.95
Working ¢apital demand loans frem banks

For the year ended Mareh 21, 2024 [105.86) 10536

Far the year ended March 31, 2023 [V08.30) o830
Cash cradits from banks

For the year ended March 31, 2024 4777 4777

Far the year ended Warch 31, 2023 a7 4837
Bills discounted under L€

Far the year ended harch 31, 2024 [87.87} ava7

For the year anded March 31, 2023 [B5.79) BE7G
Bills discounted under TReDS

Far tha year ended plarch 31, 2024 4e41) %47

For the year ended March 31, 2023 S8.6% BA.69

[55.27}
{31.60)

(79.22)
(81.04)

{35743
{36.05)

{65.75)
{54.201

{3697
166.37)

3

55.27
51.60

922
8104

3574
3605

G575
64.20

36497
B6.37

- Lontinusd on next page
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b. Currengy risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrurnent will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposad to the effects
of fluctuation in the prevaling farign currercy exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of 2armings and expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure
arises prmarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional correney and ather eurrencies fram the Company's operating, investing and financing activivies.

Exposure to foreign eurvency risk
The carrying amounts of the Company's fereign currency denominated menetany assets and meonedary liabilities at the end of the reporting periad are as follows:

Aa at Asat

Particufars Denomination fidarch 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Forgigh currgncy Equivalent ¥ Foreian currency Equivalent ¥
Rzceivables
Trade Recaivables Usp 2003 T.670.25 - -
Derivative Financial &ssetsiincluding Margin Balance) Ush - - 2.54 208.84
Cazh and Cash Equivalent UsD - - 1.32 108.54
Unhedged receivahies 20.03 1.670.25 3.86 317.38
Payahies
Trade payables Ush 13.32 1,116.79 26.93 2.214.26
Letter of Credit st - - 69,11 568163
Unhadged bles/(Receivablas) 12.29 1.116.79 96.04 7.885.89
Net uphedged forsign curvency exposure UsD 553,44 (7.578.45)

Ferzign currancy sensitivity anabysis

The following table dedails the Campany's sensitivity to a 50 hps increase and decrease in the IMR (%) against USD. 50 bps i3 the sensitivity rate used when reporting fareign
currency risk internally ta key management persannel and represents managerment’s assessment of the reasenably possibla changa in forsign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes anly outstanding foreign currency denominated monstary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for & 50 bps change in foreign currency rates,
In case of net foreign currercy autflow, a positive number below indicatas an increase in profit or equity where the strengthens 50 bps againgt the relevant currency. For a 50
bips weakening of the ¥ against the relevant currency, there wauld be a comparable impact on the profit or equity. and the balances below would be negativee, It case of net
foreign currency inflow, a positive number below indicates an increase in profit oe equity where the  weakens 50 bps against the relevant currancy, For a 50 bps strengihening
of the T against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the pradit or equity, and the balances belaw would be negative.

Profit ar loss Equity, net of tax

50 bps 50 bps 50 bps 50 bps
incraase decrease increase decraase
usp
Far the year ended March 31, 2024 332 {3.32 248 £2.48)
For the year ended March 31, 2023 (46,09 46,09 {34.49) 3449

USLx: United States Doliar
Capital managameant

For the purpese of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable te tha equity holdars of the
Company,

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in erder to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to itin the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk chacacreristics of the underlying assets,

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital ta shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.
The Company manitors capital on ihe basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interast-bearing debts divided by tatal capital (equity attributable to awners of
the parent plus interast-bearing debis).

As at Az at
March 31, 2024 fiarch 21, 2023
Barrowings 6881532 76,538.01
Less: Cash and bank balances 10.375.30 11,605.46
Adjusted net dabt (A} 58,440.02 64,932 55
Totzl equity (B} 35,43%.07 312,829.14
Adjustad net debt to adjusted equiky ratio (B/5) 188

.Space imtentionally left blank..
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55 Income faxes

A ised in the

of Profit and Loss

Inceme tax expensa
Current tax
Inceme tax For earlier vears
Diaferred tax axpense
Change in receynised termporary differences

A tsed in Other Compret fye Tncame

Iltems that wilf not be reclassiflad to profit or less
Femeasurement af aguity instriements
Remeasuremenits of defined benefit chbligations

A, ized in Other Comprehensive Incomy

Hema that will not ba reclassified te profit or loss
2 t of eouity i
Rameazurements of defined benedit obligations

Recencilistion of effoctive tax rate

Prafiz bafore tax from continuing aperationg

Tax using the Campany's demestic 1a rate

Tax effect of

Expense: an fair valuation of financial instruments & Leases
Incame on an fair valuation of financial instrumerts & Leases
Impairment of Trade Recaivalilas

Expenditures disallowed under the Income Tax Act
Exparditures allowed under the Jncome Tax Acl

Gratuity

Qther adjustments

in dof 1 tax bal

Daferrad thx assets

Trade receivables

Provisians far emplayes banafltz

Leases

Contract lability as per Ind AS 155
Expenditure disallowed under Imeome Tas Act
Sequrity depasils

{Hhers

Sub- Tetal {n)

Deferred tax Rabilitiss
Fraperty, plant & equipment
Intangible assets

Darivative Finansisl Assets
Borrowings

Others

Subx- Totml jb}

Draferred tax liahilities (net) (b) - {2}

B, in def  tax hal

Beferred tax assets

Trade receivables

Provisions for empleyes benefils

Leasas

Cantract liability as per bnd A5 175
Expenditiere dizsllowed under Incarme Tax Aet
Secunty deposits

Others

Subs- Total ta)

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & cquipment
Intangible sssets

Drerivative Financial Assats
Borrowings

Others

Sub- Tatal (b)

Deferred tax linbilitler {nat} (b} - {3}

Far the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

Far the year endsd
Mareh 31, 2§23

102776 3,159.82
[G5.62) 22.12)
951.54 3.077.70

For the year endad March 31, 2024

Eefare Tax {expenze]lf Net
1A% income of tax
(L.65; 1 EE] 5.723
{7.65) 183 {579

For the year ended March 37, 2023

Befor Tax fexpense}/ MNat
tax incony of tax
16.67 [4.25] 1262
16.87 (4.25) 13.62
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ratg Armount Rate
25.07% 356030 2530%
901.02
1.563.42 214,50
(208.71) (26227}
(23.53) 3554
1.096.40 51554
[835.98) 4a543)
12606y 481
(1A15.0% [B&.55)
o61.54 3.077.70
Az at R ] Recognised Asat
March 31, 3033 inPaL in Q€I March 31, 2624
2242 54.73 - 27715
4380 4319 1493 o102
26961 BE 1% - 355.60
B1.07 (411.73) . 3935
158 093 257
(79.95; 1.406.38 132843
538.64 1,5583.75 1.83 4,094.32
82135 20B17F - 1.029.55
(1.0} {3.49 - {459
1204 (19.04) - -
2787 130253 - 133050
1.08 005) - -
B67.35 1.488.11 - 2,355.4E
3287 165.64) [1.93) 26114
—
A at Recagnized Ri isad As at
March 31, 2002 in P&l in OCT March 31, 2023
Rlirg-ii) 114.62 - 2324y
3053 - 1762 4.25) 4390
145,16 - 12445 - 26961
421 - el - -
L3585 - 2752 - B1.07
4.4 - 128 - 1.59
LR5.82) - 2587 - (79.85;
235.74 ELEN T (4.25) 538.64
B3840 - 183.37 - 82138
104 . (214 . nm
- - 1%.04 - 19,0
321 - 2478 - 2387
0.05 - - - 5
22503 - 267.35
328.7

182.12} 4.25
e




A-OME STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITER
tformerly known aa “A-One Steel and Allays Private Limited”}

Motes ta the standal
(All ameunt are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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financial

Key Financial Ratios

b ts for the year ended March 21, 2024

Key financial ratias along wilk the details of significant changes 125% or marel in Fr 2023-24 compared o FY 202223 15 ac jnilows;

|F_nr tha year ended

’ Revenue frorm eperations /
Pvarage working canital

Refar fnotnote Bl

Eiy Farmulae | % Change Reason for change
Ralies ‘ e 3lbar-24 | 31-Mar2d | o -
Current ratio (in times) ‘ Current asses / 1.14 1.258 -B.59% Less thar 25%

Current hakilit:es
Delt eguity ratic (in times} | Debr / Sharehalders' equity 238 I 262 -£.54% Lezs than 25%
Debt seovice covetags ratio (in times) Earnings availadle for debt services ¢ 1.44 273 -4T26% Refer footnote B{i)
{Repayment of
barrowings + Interez)
Return on Equity Ratic (3%) [ Prieditf(less) after taxes } 73% 2692 -T2.54% Refer footnote Biii)
Total Clesing equi
Return on Capital Employed Ratio (Pre ta} (%) Earring before interest & tax / Capital 1662 2580 -355T% Refer fontnate Biiil
emploved
et profit ratia (%) ‘ Met profit / Revenue a7s 312 -7597% Refar fantnote v
from gpeartions
Invertary Tumayer Ratia $n times) I Cast of Goads Sold / 698 753 -7.33% Less than 25%
Ayerage Inventory
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times} ‘ Credit sales / Average B3 1005 -20.90% Less than 25%
trade receivables
Trade payables turnover ratio (i times) Credit purchases / Avarage 10.60 16.37 -3526%
trade payatles Refer footrote Bivt
Met capital Turnover Ratic (in times} 4324 ir92 2970

Return an Invastment Ratio is not applicabis ta the Campany Refer Note 8

R for siqnifi h

{25% or mare)

Derrease in current ynar profit & Increase in short kerm borrowings

Ingreage in costs compatred to increase in Sales Revenue

Decrease in current year prafits

Increase in costs compatred to increase in Sales Revenue

Increase in trade Payables
Docrease in Unsecured shaort terrm borrowings

Farmulag
Current Assets=Total Current Assats

Current Liabilities=Toral Cuteent Lisbiliies-Current Maturities of Leng Term Delbt

Debt- Long Term & Shart Term Barrowings
Sharehalders's bund=Tetal Equity

Earnings available for debt services=Ltarnings befare Interest,lax and Bepreciation & Amorbrzation

Repaymant of Sorrowings «Interest=Current Maturity of Lona tarm Debt +Finance Cast

Profit{lass) after taxes=Profit after Tax
Total equity = Toral Closing Equity

Capital Employed=Tolal Assets-Current Liakilites

Earning before interast & rav=Prafit befare TaxrFinance Cost

Met Profit=Met Profit after Taes

Revenue from Operations=Total Revenue from Operations
Cost of Gaods Sald=Cost of materials consumed £ Changes in inventares of finshed goods and work-in-progress
Average Inventery=(Opening Inventary+Closirg Inventony /2

Lraght Sales= Total Sales

Average Trade raceivables=(Opening Trade Raceivables+Clasing Trade Receivabla sz

Credit purchases=Purchase of Materials

fweraye Trade Payables=z (Ppening Trade Paysbles+Closing Trade Payablesy2
Revenue frem Operations=Tatal Revenue from Operations
Average werking capital=(Opening Warking Capital+ Cloting Working Capiraly/2

Warking Capital=Currant Assets-Cumant Liabilities




A-GNE STEELS MBS PRIVATE LIKITELD
(formerly dnown as "H-Dne Steel and Alloys Private Limited"™)
Motes to the standaione financial statements for the year ended Btarch 31, 2024
{All amnount are in T Lalths , unbess otherwiss statad)

57 Recondilistion of guarterly retums or statements of net working capital filed with banks or financizi institutions

Guarter Aggregate Arnount utilised Amount as per | Ameount as reporied Armsunt of Inter-group Remzining Reasens for material
working capital during the books of account in the quartarly differance(e ) halances(f ) difference{g) discrepancies{k}

fimits santioned{a) auarterib) {c) returnd statement(d)

June 2023 43,000.00 3166502 4782528 48,196.45 {37117 - {371.17)] Refer foatnotas

September 2023 36,500.00 31,301.49 43,945.47 49,236.55 {291.08) - 1291.08} Refer foatnotes

Decamber 2023 36,500.00 31,621.55 53,074.68 53,605.18 {530.501 - (530.30} Refer footnotes

March 2024 36,500.00 30,665.05 46,626.28 46,364 63 261.65 - 261.65 | Rafer footnotes

Cuarker fogragate Amount utifised |Amcunt as per Amount as reported | Amount of Inter-group Remaining Reasons for material
worlking capital during the books of account  |in the guarterly difference(e ) balameas{t) differencelsg) diszrapanciasih)
firmits santtoned(a) |quarter(l) {c) return/ statement{d)

June 2022 21,500.00 18,237.67 3310854 34,444 64 (1,336,100 {1,535.57) 199.47 | Rafer footrotes

Septamber 2022 43,300.00 26,089.4% 36,821.16 A1,665.00 {4,843.84) {7,270.14) 2,426.30 | Refer footnotes

Dacember 2022 43.000.00 31,427.79 4773597 5251079 {4, 774.82) {3.796.53) {978.29)| Refer footnotes

March 2023 43,000.00 31,217.80 48,728.92 4544549 3,283.43 4,330.94 {1,047 .57}| Refer footnotes

Footnotes:

(it The differences are on account of statement filed with the banks prepared based on provisional basis and regrouping of various ledgers.

{ii} While arriving the drawing power the creditors are adjusted from bank balances available as on respective guarters.

{iii} The Company has a practice of submitting net position of debtors,advances to suppliers,inventory and deducting creditors,advance from customers,Unsecured Bills Discounted with RXIL & Poonawala Fincorp

and LC payable Therefore for comparing with the books of accounts the same practice has been followed te arrive at the net position though there is a change in classification in the financial statements.

..Space intentionafly feft blank...
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A-OMNE STEELS iNDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

{farmerly known as "a-One Steel and Allays Private Limited™)

Motes to the -El] fi ial ts for the year ended Marck 31, 2024
Al emaunt are in ¥ Lakhs , unlase otharwlss stated)

58 The Board of Direciors of the Cempany has approved 3 scheme of amanyement of amalgamation of A-One Stesls India Private fimited snd Aasyar Hitech Steels Incha Private Lemised
"Amalgamating Compames”) with 4-One Sleel and Alleys Prvate Limiled {Amalgemated Campany”] in its meeting held on May 27, 2021 The scheme has been filed wilh Lhe Honourable
Matignal Company aw Tribunal (MOLT™). The scheme is eRective from April 1, 2021 upon approval fram NCLT erder dated Nevember 22, 2023 The appointed date as propesed Ly the
Company is April 1, 2021

Accounting Treatmant
The amalgan:azion has been accounled n accordance wilh *Paating of interast methee® a5 laid down in Appendis © - ‘Business combinations of enlities under comman central af Ind 45 103
natified under Sectior 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Irdiam Azeounting Standards) as amended, as specified in the scheme, such that:

|1 &1l assets and abilities of the Amalgamating Company se slated at the carrying values as appeanng in the standalenc fnancial statements of Amalgamating Company

(b3 Tae ierlity af 1he reserves have been prese-ved and are recaided in 1he same farm and at the carrying amoaint 35 appearing in the standalone financial stateraants of Arnalgamating
Company.

{c) The inter-gompary balances between both the companies nave been eliminated.
(el Camparative financial infermation in the Fnandial statemenis of the Amalgamated {ompary has been restated for the accounting inpact of merger, as stated abowve, as if the merger had
accurred from the beginming o the camparative pericd The difference, it any, between the ameount recorded as share capital issued and the amount f share capitat of the Amalgamating

Cempany has been transferred 1o capilal 1eserve and presented separately from athar capital eeserves.

Details of assets and liabilities of A One Steels Indla Private Limited and Aaryan Hitach Steels ndia Private Limited sdded ta the opening balances of the Company (e, April 1, 2021) and
conseguential adjustment to Capital Resarve:

Aaryan Hitech Stecl: A One Steels India Private

Particutars India Private Limited Limited Total
Men-curment asets
Praparty, plant & equipment F17.79 137088 243867
Fwestments - T20.00 Fe0.00
Othgr financial assets 136,32 102855 116427
Mon-current bax assers fnett 297 - =47
Irngritaries - 391458 3314528
Finardial assets -
Trade receivabiles 5143 412957 4,241.00
ath and cash equivalents 16,23 T00.EE 749
Bark balances other than cash and eash equivalents - 9586 o686
Other financial s3sals oz2 2148 21
[Hher current assels 390.08 R84 1,360.82
Total Assets 131154 13,023.82 14.335.46
Non-current liabilltlas
Financial [iabifities
Eorrowings - 12623 128.23
Defrsred tax liabilities (net) {1283} 230.01 ZHL1E
Current liabifitles
Finarciaf liahsl:ties
Burreuwmings 4196 258264 2E24.60
Trade payables
total outstanding dues of MSME; and &5 G062 5,77
taval outstanding dues of credirars ather than MSME 626 3,357.38 336564
Other financial liabilities 3523 3 5997
Gther cucrent [iabilities A 5GE6E 55339
Pravisions 4712 65167 F00.79
Regerves & Surplus oE1E2 405569 462591
Total Lizbilitlos and Reserves B85 B4 11,660,684 12.349.48
et Assets (A) 522.80 1.363.18 1,935.92
Ablotment of Equity Shates to aquity sharehalders of A One Steeks India Private Limited and
Aaryan Hitech Steels India Private Limited (B} $3.23 250.49 37372
Caphal Rererve on sccount of Amalgamation [A)-(B) 57857 1.082.649 1.812.28

59 The Horle MOLT Bengaturu Bench, via Crder Ma CPICAA) Mo 24/BE/2022 dated November 22, 2023, has approved the Scheme of Arnalgamation undet Sectians 230-232 of the Campanies
Aet, 2013 Aecording to this scheme, & Cne Steels Inda rivate Limited and Aaryan Hitech Steels India Private Limited have merged into A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited. Concurrenthy, the:
name of A-One Steel and Allcys Private Limited has besn changed ta A-One Steets India Private Limited. Mame changs of the company effective fram June 29,2034,

60 The Parliament of Indsa has appraved new Labour {odes which would impact the contributions by the Company tawsrds Pravident Fund, Employes State Inguranee and Gratuity, The effective
date frarm which the changes are spplicable is vet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. The Campany will carry aur an avaluation of the impact and recerd the same in the financial
statements in the period in wnich the Codas became effective and the ralated rules are published

3

it

Tha Cormpany doss nat have any transachons with cempanies struck-off under Section 248 of the Companies Acl, 2013 or Secticn 560 of the Companies Act, 1956

62 The Compary dees nok have any immevable praperty (other than oroperttes where the Compary s a lesser and the [4ase agreements are duly evesubed in the favour of tha lessee] whase title
deeds are not held in the name of the Company except as disclosed in Nate 3.

6% The Comaany does not have any Benani property, where any proceeding has been initiatgd er pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

B4 The Company has rot traded or invested in Crypte cumency or irtual Cumancy during the finaneial year.

B5 The Compary hava not advanced of fosred of invested funds to any sther person(s) or entityiies), induding foreign enlities [Intarmediaries) with the understanding that the | diary shall:
ta} directly o1 indirectly land or invest in ather persons or antities identrfied in. any manner whatsaaver by or o behalf of the Company {Ultimste Benefidiaries) or

1b} provids any guaantee, security ar the ke 1o or on behalf of the itimate Beneficiarias.

.Lantinuad on nest page
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A-ONE STEELS [NDHA PRIVATE LIMITER

{farmerly known as "A-One Stesl and Allays Privale Limited"y

Notos ta thy fal fi 1al far the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amount are in ¥ Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

Lantitued fom previous page

BE The Zumpary have net receved any fund from any aersanis or entityies), ncluding Foresgn entities (Funding Farty] with the undarstanding whether recorded i swriting or otherwised that the
Campary shall

Laj tirectly or md-rectly lend or invest in ather persens or entiries idearified in ary marner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultim ate Bencficiaries) or
L&t peovide any guaraniee, securily or the ke ko ar on behslf of the lltimate Benaficiarres
E7 The Company does not have any €harges & satisfaction whic is yat 1o be registeed with Recistzar al Comparies ("R beyond the statutory penad

&8 The Compacy %ot rot done amy such transactior which iz not recorded in the bogks of acvounts that has been swirendered or dischosed a5 incomi tuling the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1967 dsuch as, search ar survey or any othr relovant provitions of the Income Tax Act, 1961}

&2 The Camaany hag not been deelared & wilful defsulter by any bank or financial institutions o0 uthe- lerder in accordance with rhe guidelings on wiliul defaullens issued by the Reserve Bank of
fredia.

T

The Company has nat wsed sty boriowings from banke anc financial institutiang for purpose other than for which it was taken.

7

=

These finangial statements were approved for issus by the Board of Directars an August 21, 2024,

For Singhi & Co For and gin bebalf of th%‘%r
Chartesed Accountants A-{'J_ne Eteels India Privat

o g
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Registered Office : A One House No. 326,
CQAL Layout, Ward No.08, Sahakar Nagar,
Bengaluru - 560082 Karnataka, India
Phone: 080-45648000

Email info@aonesteelgroup.com

Web: www.aonesteelgroup.com

CIN : U28999KA2012PTC063438

A-ONE STEELS INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED

( Formerly Known as A-One Steel and Alloys Privote Limited)

o

e

5 5 e

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12hAnnual General Meeting of the Members of A-ONE
STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS A-ONE STEEL AND ALLOYS PRIVATE
LIMITED) will be held on Saturday, 28th September 2024 at 5.00 P.M at the registered office
of the Company Situated at A One House. No. 326, CQAL Layout Ward No. 08, Sahakar
Nagar Bengaluru - 560092 to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2024 and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended
as on that date and the Report of the Auditor's and Board of Directors' attached

thereon.

2. TO FIX THE REMUNERATION OF STATUTORY AUDITORS:
To consider, if thought fit, o pass with or without modification(s), following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139(1) and Section 142(1) and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
under, as amended from time to time, consent of the members be and is hereby
accorded to fix the remuneration of M/s. Singhi & Co. (FRN: 302049E), Chartered
Accountfants, as Statutory Auditors of the company were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at 9" Annual General Meeting held on 30" November 2021 for
the period of 5 years and to hold office unfil the conclusion of 14" Annual General
Meeting and that the Board of Directors hereby authorized to fix the remuneration for

the remaining tenure of the said auditors in consultation with them."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. RATIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO COST AUDITORS
To consider, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s). following resclution as
an Ordinary Resolution:




“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Rs. 80,000 plus applicable taxes and out of
pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors, M/s. Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost
Accountants (FRN: 100509). Bangalore appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25 be and is hereby ratified.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resclution.”

4. TO EXEMPT THE AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY TO ATTEND THE GENERAL MEETINGS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable provisions, if any, consent of members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to consider giving exemption to the Auditors of the Company to
attend the General Meetings."

By Order of the Board
: EDS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Directo
DIN: 02112630

Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 04/09/2024
Place: Bengaluru




Note:

A member is enfitled to attend and vote at the meeting and is entitied to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote instead of themselves and such proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the fotal share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. A membér holding more than ten percent of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s) fo attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the relevant
Board Resolution of the representative(s) authorised under the said Board Resolution to
attend and vote on their behdlf at the Meeting.

The Register of Members, Register of Directors, Register of Directors’ Shareholdings
maintained u/s. 88 and 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, and such other Registers and
all the documents referred in the accompanying notice and the explanatory
statement shall be open for inspection of members at the Registered office of the
Company during business hours on any
working day, up to and including the date of the EGM of the Company.

The notice of AGM will be available on Companies website
https://aonesteelgroup.com.

Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed
herewith.

Attendance slip, proxy form and the route map of the venue of the Meeting are
annexed hereto.

In case of any specific queries/clarification on the operations or any other subject,
members may send their queries to the registered office of the Company before
convening the meeting.



ITE .03:

The Board has approved the appointment and payment of remuneration to M/s.
Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN: 100509), Bangalore, as the Cost Auditor to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the company for the financial year ending March
31, 2025.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditers has to be ratified by the shareholders of the company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set
out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice for rafification of the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025.

None of the Directors of the company/their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice.

ITEM NO. 04:

As per Section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members is required for
exempting the Auditors of the Company to attend General Meetings. The Board
recommends this resolution for the approval of the members as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors of the company/their relatives are, in any way, concerned or

interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

By Order of the Board
INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

DIN: 02112630

Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 04.09.2024
Place: Bengaluru




Route Map to A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED:
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN:

Name of the company: :

Registered office:

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of ............ . shares of the above named

company, hereby appoint

Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature:................ , or failing him




as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ourbehalf at the

e ANnual general meeting/ Extraordinary general meeting of the company, to be

held on the L T Y pa i

(place) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of

such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this...... day of

| Signature of shareholder




ATTENDANCE SLIP

12" Annual General Meeting

NAME (IN BLOCK LETTERS)

ADDRESS

REGISTERED FOLIO
NO. /DP ID &
CLIENT ID

SHAREHOLDER /
PROXY/ AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 12" Annual General Meeting of the
Company being held on Saturday, 28" September 2024 at 05.00 P.M at the Registered
office of the Company Situated at A One House No.326, Ward No. 08, CQAL Layout,
Sahakar Nagar Bengaluru - 560092,

Signature of Shareholder / Proxy /Authorised Representative

Nofe: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting
hall. Members are requested fo bring their copiesof the Annual Report to the AGM.



Registered Office : A One House No. 326,
CQAL Layout, Ward No.08, Sahakar Nagar,
Bengaluru - 560092 Karnataka, india
Phone: 0B0-45646000

Email: info@aonesteelgroup.com

Web: www.aonesteelgroup.com

CIN : U28998KA2012PTC0D63438
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A-ONE STEELS INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED

{ Formerly Known a3 f-One Stewl and Alloys Private Limited)

s

BOARD'S REPORT

To,

Dear Shareholders,

Your directors have the pleasure in presenting the 12h"Annual Report of the Company together
with audited statement of Accounts for the year ended 31stMarch, 2024.
1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS/STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS:
The financial performance of your Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 is summarized below:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
From 1st April From 1st April From 1st April From 1st April
2022 to 31st 2022 to 31st 2022 to 31st 2022 to 31st
March 2024 March 2023 March 2024 March 2023
Revenue from operations 348975.90 282964.74 383421.24 316351.92
Ciherinecme 2425.02 969.96 2822.61 2075.24
Total Revenue 351400.92 283934.70 386243.85 318427.16
Total Expenditure 347820.62 272022.13 380425.94 304943.89
Profit/(Loss) before tax 3580.30 11912.57 5817.91 13483.27
Tax Expenses, MAT Credit &
Deferred tax 961.54 3077.70 1996.99 3735.19
Profit / (Loss) after tax 2618.76 8834.87 3820.92 9748.08

2. PERFORMANCEREVIEW:

Standalone Operations:

During the year under review, the Company has registered revenue from operations of Rs.
348975.90 Lakhs as compared to previous year's revenue of Rs. 282964.74 Lakhs by registering a
growth rate of 23.33%. Company has recorded Profit before tax of Rs. 3580.30 Lakhs as compared
to the previous year profit of Rs.11912.57Lakhs and Profit after tax of Rs. 8834.87 Lakhs during the
FY 2023-24. Due to increase in cost of materials consumed and other expenses current year profit
before tax has declined compared to last year profit before tax.




Your directors expect the performance of the Company during the current financial year would

improve as estimated.

Consolidated Operations:

During the year under review, the Company has registered revenue from operations of Rs.
383421.24 Lakhs as compared to previous year revenue of Rs. 316351.92 Lakhs by registering a
growth rate of 21.20%. Your Company has recorded Profit before tax of Rs. 5817.91 Lakhs as
compared to the previous year profit of Rs. 13483.27 Lakhs. Profit after tax of Rs. 3820.92 Lakhs
during the FY 2023-24,

Your directors expect that the performance of the Company on consolidated basis during the

current financial year would improve as estimated.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There is no change in the nature of business carried out by the Company during the financial year
2023-24.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END
OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position between end

of financial year and date of report,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURIS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future. However, following

orders were passed by the Regulators / courts / Tribunals during the review year:

1. The Hon'ble NCLT Bengaluru Bench, via Order No. CP(CAA) No 24/BB/2022 dated
22.11.2023, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation under Sections 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, A One Steels India Private Limited and Aaryan Hitech
Steels India Private Limited have merged into A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited. This

Scheme of Amalgamation is effective from 01.04.2021. Concurrently, the name of A-One




Steel and Alloys Private Limited has been changed to A-One Steels India Private Limited
w.e.f., 29.06.2024.

Following orders have been passed the by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals between the
end of the Financial Year and the date of this report:

The Company and Directors received summons vide C.C./81/2023 dated 10.10.2023 from
the Spl. Court for Economic Offences, Bengaluru for the viclation under section 128 of the

Companies Act.

The Company had also filed a Compounding Application before the Regional Director,
Hyderabad on 25.11.2023 with regard to the same. The Total Penalty Amount Imposed by
the Regional Director vide No 9/05/ROC(B)/Sec 128 of the Companies Act
2013/RD(SER)/2024 before The Reginal Director (SER), Hyderabad Ministry of Corporate
Affairs/242 dated 18.04.2024 against the Directors and the Company was Rs. 3,75,000/-.
This penalty was duly settled on 12th March 2024.

Following the payment, A formal intimation was provided to the Special economic offence
Court. Special Economic offence Court vide order dated 23/05/2024 disposed the case.

The Company and Directors received summons vide No C.C./83/2023 dated 10.10.2023
from the Spl Court for Economic Offences, Bengaluru for the violation under section 128 of
the Companies Act.

The Company had filed Compounding Application before the Regional Director,
Hyderabad on 25.11.2023 for the same. The Total Penalty Amount Imposed by the Regional
Director vide No 9/04/ROC(B)/Sec 129 of the Companies Act 2013/RD(SER)/2024 before
The Reginal Director (SER), Hyderabad Ministry of Corporate Affairs/267 dated 18.04.2024
against the Directors and the Company amounted to Rs.11,25,000/-. This penalty was duly
settled on 12th March 2024.

A formal intfimation of proceedings at Regional Director was provided to the Special
economic offence Court. Subsequently, our involvement in the court proceedings
concluded. Special Economic offence Court vide order dated 23/05/2024 disposed the

case.




During the year, as per the order passed by the Hon'ble NCLT, Bengaluru Bench vide CP(CAA)
N0.24/BB/2022 dated 22" November, 2023 u/s. 230-232 of the Companies Act 2013 for approving

the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme") of A One Steels India Private Limited (Transferor

Company No. 1) and Aaryan Hitech Steels India Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 2) with

A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited (Transferee Company), the Transferee Company has

issued] (One) equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid-up in the Transferee Company for every

4.86 equity share of Rs.100/- each fully paid up held by the shareholders in the Transferor

Company-11 (One) equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid-up in the Transferee Company for

every 66.80 equity share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up held by the shareholders in the Transferor
Company-2 on 11.03.2024.

S| | Name of the
allottees

No of Equity Shares
allofted to shareholders

No of Equity Shares
allotted to shareholders

N of Transferor Company of Transferor Company
o No 1 No 2
1 | Sandeep Kumar 1,54,288 9,760
2 | Sunil Jallan 66,650 83,474
3 | Krishan Kumar 59,550 0
Jalan
TOTAL 2,80,488 93,234

Following below are details of share pledge by the shareholders of the company:

Name of shareholders

No of shares pledged

Date of Pledge

Pledgee Name

Krishan Kumar Jalan 1,30,000 24/03/2023 Tata Capital Financial
Services Limited
Krishan Kumar Jalan 55,46,527 09/08/2024 Tata Capital Financial

Services Limited

10. DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.However, there is an o/s. loan

availed by the Company from the directors as on 31+ March, 2024. The same has been disclosed

in the notes to financial statement




11. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
As per Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company shall place a copy of the annual
return on the website of the company, if any and the web-link of such annual return shall be
disclosed in the Board's report.
The Annual Return of the Company is available on the Company's website i.e.,

www.aonesteelgroup.com.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
All contracts, arangements, transactions entered into by the company during the financial year

under review with the related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on the arm’s
length basis. Details as reqguired by Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Form
AOC-2 as "Annexure-ll".

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):
In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Direclors have

constituted as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commitlee and adopted a CSR policy. CSR
policy available on the website of the company i.e., www.aonesteelgroup.com. The Annual
Report on CSR activities for the financial year 2023-24 as required under the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has been appended as “Annexure-lll" and

forms integral part of this Report.

14. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company being a private in constitution, provision with respect to Independent directors is

not applicable.

15. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

SI. | PARTICULARS DISCLOSURE
No.
(A) | Conservation of Energy: The Energy ccnservation continues to
li) The steps taken or Iimpact on |receive priority attention at all levels. All
conservation of energy efforts are made to conserve and
optimize use of energy with continuous
i) The steps taken by the company for | monitoring, improvement in
utilizing alternate sources of energy maintenance through improved
operational techniques.
i) The capital investment on energy
conservation equipments




(B) Technology Absorption: Updation of Technology is a Continuous

process; efforts are continuously made

(i) The efforts made towards technology | to develop new products required in
absorption; the Company's activities.

NA

(i) The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution.

(i) In case of imported technology
. (imported during the last three years | Nil
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year).

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research | Nil
and Development.

16. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO: (amount in Lakhs

Particulars As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023
Foreign Exchange Earning 5348.01 1271.94
Foreign Exchange Outgo 2550.70 1348.89

17. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board comprises following Directors as on 31/03/2024:

Sl. No. Name of the Director Designation

01. Sandeep Kumar Director

02. Sunil Jallan Whole-Time Director
03. Uma Shankar Goyanka Director

04 Manoj Kumar Director

Following are the changes in composition of Board of Directors between end of financial year
and date of signing of report:

Name of the | Designation Resignation Date Nature of change
Director

Manoj Kumar Director 12t June 2024 Resignation




Mr. Manoj Kumar has resigned the post of directorship in the company with effect from 12.06.2024

18. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS:

During the year, the Company has paid remuneration to following directors

SI No Name of the Director Remuneration (Amount in
Lakhs)

01 Sunil Jallan Rs. 144.00

02 Manoj Kumar Rs. 24.00

03 Sandeep Kumar Rs. 120.00

04 Uma Shankar Goyanka Rs. 18.00

19. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

During the Financial year 2023-24, there were18 Board Meetings held on the following dates:

SI No Date of Total Number of directors Attendance
meeting associated as on the
date of meeting Number of directors % of attendance
Attended

1 03/04/2023 4 4 100
2| 25/04/2023 4 2 50
%3 09/05/2023 4 2 50
4 09/06/2023 4 2 50
5| 31/07/2023 4 2 50
6| 26/08/2023 4 2 50
¥ 29/08/2023 4 2 50
8| 13/09/2023 4 2 SRENET
9| 25/09/2023 4 2 50
10 28/0%9/2023 4 2 50
11 06/10/2023 4 2 50
12| 21/11/2023 4 2 50
13 | 23/12/2023 4 2 50
14 30/12/2023 4 2 50
15| 22/01/2024 4 2 50
16 20/02/2024 4 2 50
17 11/03/2024 4 2 50

18 25/03/2024 4 4 | 100




During the financial year 3 Committees meeting held on the following dates:

Type of Date of Total Number of Aftendance
commitiee meeting members associated
as on the date of Number of members | % of attendance
meeting Aftended

CSR 03/04/2023 | 03 03 100

Committee

POSH 08/01/2024 | 04 04 100

Committee

CSR 25/03/2024 |03 03 100

Committee

20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 18é:

The Company has given loans, the investment made and guarantee given under Section 186 of

the companies Act, 2013 is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and the details as

follows;
(Amount in Lakhs except disclosure made in SI. No. 4)
SINo | Name of the Company ' Nature of | Number of | Investment
Transactions shares be | Amount
allotted /Guarantee

Investments 1,51,60,166 850.08

Vanya Steels Private

- .y 2 .l Corporate - 17,760.00

1 Limited -subsidiary

Guarantee

company

2 A-One Gold Steels India | Investments 49,999 5.00

Private Limited - Wholly |

Owned subsidiary |

company |

3 A-One Gold Pipes and | Investments 49,999 5.00

Tubes Private  Limited- !

Wholly Owned subsidiary |

COpany Corporate - 5850.00
Guarantee
Loan given =t 1154.01

4 A One Gold Singapore Pte | Investments 1000 SGD 1000
Ltd




21.

5 *Vyshali Energy Private | Investments 32,450 3.25
Limited

6 *Radiance KA Sunshine Five | Investments 1,27,40,000 1274.00
Private Limited

¥ *Radiance KA Sunshine Six | Investments 47,60,000 476.00
Private Limited

8 *FP Surqgj Private Limited Investments 56,00,000 560.00

9 *Atria Wind Power (Bijapur | Investments 3,14,675 696.94
1) Private Limited

10 *CGreen Infra Clean Solar | Investments 73,50,000 735.00
Energy Limited

11 *Green Infra Clean Wind | Investments 1,22,53,800 1225.38
Power Limited

12 Atria Wind Power Private | Investments 1,83,205 480.00
Limited

13 Blyth Wind Park Private | Investments 12,00,000 240.00
Limited

14 Egan Solar Private Limited | Investments 3,39,000 160.01

15 FPEL Celestical Private | Investments 8,40,000 84.00
Limited

*In order to establish a captive consumption ownership structure in accordance with the provisions
of Electricity Rules, 2005, company has invested the amount in the Equity Share capital of Vyshali
Energy Private Limited, Radiance KA Sunshine Five Private Limited, Radiance KA Sunshine Six
Private Limited, FP Surgj Private Limited, Atria Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited, Green Infra
Clean Solar Energy Limited and Green Infra Clean Wind Power Limited, Atria Wind Power Private
Limited, Blyth Wind Park Private Limited, Egan Solar Private Limited, FPEL Celestical Private Limited.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

(@) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to the material departures;

(b) The directors have selected such accounfing policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the

profit or loss of the Company for the year under review.

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities.



(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

(f) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls fo be followed by the Company and
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

22. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
The Company has complied all the applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of

Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

23. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company. In today's challenging
and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth
plans of the Company are imperative.

The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence,
Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. It also includes exchange risk as the
fransactions fakes place among foreign countries. Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial
risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as

appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

24. HUMAN RESOURCES:
The management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted
tfraining at periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously

followed the principle of rewarding performance.

25. REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company is not covered under the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
However, the remunerafion policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of

remuneration according to qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the



26.

27,

28,

i

organization. The employees who are engaged in clerical, administrative and professional

services are suvitably remunerated according to the industry norms.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for

directors and employees in confirmation with Section 177 (9) of the companies act 2013 read with
Rule 7(1)(b) of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules 2014 to report concerns

about unethical behavior.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has adeguate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss,

unauthorized use or disposition of its assets.

All the tfransactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The
Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining books of

accounts and reporting financial statements.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place a prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements

of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up fo redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy.

During the year 2023-24, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual
harassment.

DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS PER SECTION 148(1):

The Company is maintaining the books of accounts and other related records as per rules

prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2013 as on 31st March, 2024.




31. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:

As on 31st March 2024, the Company did not enter into any transacticn for One Time Settlement

of loan/borrowings from Bank.

32. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

During the year under review, the Company had no employees who earned remuneration
beyond the limits specified under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

33. AUDITORS:
i) STATUTORY AUDITORS:
M/s. Singhi & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (FRN: 302049%E), were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the company at the ¢t Annual general Meeting of the company held
on 30.11.2021 for the period of 5 years and to hold office until the conclusion of the 14" Annual
General Meeting. Accordingly, the Board proposed to fix the remuneration in consultation
with the said auditors

AUDITOR'S REPORT: The Auditors’ have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 314
March 2024 and hence, do not call for any comments from the management under Section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Auditors of the Company have not reported any
fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Act.

Following are reported in the Auditor's Report:

1. Point No 2 (iv)(i) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: The Company
has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a teature of
recording audit frail, except where in respect of books of records pertaining to three units,
where the accounting software did not have audit trail feature enabled throughout the

year.



Management Reply: The company has a total of 7 operational units. Qut of the 7 units, 4

units have been using accounting ERP software for maintaining their books of accounts

and have integrated audit trail. However, with reference to remaining 3 units, 1 unit has

been merged with the company pursuant to scheme of amalgamation w.e.f., 01.04.2021

and thus compliance with audit trail doesn't arise. Remaining 2 units have been using tally

software that have now been integrated into the ERP software. Hence, maintenance of

Audit Trail remains duly compiled by all operational units as on date.

Point i{c) of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report:

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company

is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held

in the name of the Company, except the following:

Description of Gross Held in the | Whether Reason for not being held in
property carrying name of promoter, | the name of the Company
value 4 director or
Lakhs) their
relative or
employee
Land 4.24 A One Steels | No A One Steels India Private
India Private Limited amalgamated into A-
Limited One Steels and Alloys Private
Limited
Building 207.68 A One Steels | No A One Steels India Private
India Private Limited amalgamated into A-
Limited One Steels and Alloys Private
Limited
Land 116.10 Aaryan Hitech | No Aaryan Hitech Steels India
Steels India Private Limited amalgamated
Private Limited info A-One Steels and Alloys
Private Limited
Building 127.07 Aaryan Hitech | NO Aaryan Hitech Steels Indic

Steels India

Private Limited

Private Limited amalgamated
infto A-One Steels and Alloys

Private Limited




Management Reply:
the Hon'ble NCLT, Bengaluru Bench approved the scheme of amalgamation of A One

Steels India Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 1) and Aaryan Hitech Steels India
Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 2) with A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited
(Transferee Company) vide Order No. CP(CAA) No.24/BB/2022 dated 22.11.2023. the
Company filed order copy with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka (ROC) on
20.12.2023. The ROC approved Scheme of amalgamation order on 11.03.2024. After
receipt of approval from the ROC, the Company approached the concerned authorities

for the same as on date of this report.

Pointii{b) of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report: The Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from banks and/or
financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the
Company. The deviatfions noted beiween the books of accounts and the quarterly
returns/statements filed with such banks and financial institutions have been disclosed in

Note no 57 of the standalone financial statements.

Management Reply:

The devialions are on account of statement filed with the banks prepared based on

provisional basis and regrouping of various ledgers.

Point No vii (b) of Annexure 'A' To the Independent Auditor's Report the statutory dues
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of dispute
are as follows —

Name of Nature of the | Amount | Period to Forum where the | Management Reply
the statute dues (Rs. in which the dispute is pending
Lakhs) | amount
relates
Goods and | Goods & 73.62 Deputy Company filed
Services Tax | Services Tax Commissioner of Appeal to Appellate
Act, 2017 Commercial Authority and
FY2017-18 to | Taxes hearings are
FY2019-20 underway.
Goods and | Goods & 14. 04 FY2017-18 to | Assistant The Company has
Services Tax | Services Tax FY2019-20 Commissioner of | already paid
Act, 2017 Commercial Rs.2,11,426/- and
Taxes remaining balance is
being deposited the
current financial
year.




The Income Tax Company filed CIT
Income-Tax Appeals for the said

Act, 1961

income tax demand
on 29 Oct 2021 and
we are waiting for
CIT Appeals reply on
statement of fact
and ground of
appeals submitted

" at the time of filing
of appeals. Further
company filed
petition under High-
Pitch Assessment
committee for the
high pitched and
unreasonable
assessments made in
our case for the AY

17-18 to 20-21.
First Appellate

Authority, High
AY2014-15 Pitched

to Assessment
6320.07 | AY2022-23

i)

iiii)

INTERNAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 M/s. Vishnudaya & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:
008456N/5200092) were appointed as Internal Auditor of the company. The Auditors have
issued an unqgualified Report for the year ended 31%' March 2024.

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT: The Auditors have issued an ungualified Report for the year ended
31t March 2024,

COST AUDITOR:

The Board has approved the appointment of M/s. Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants
(FRN: 100509) as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 at a
remuneration Rs. 80,000 plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses payable to the
Cost Auditors in connection with the Cost Audit.




The Board of Directors of the company proposes the ratification of remuneration of M/s.
Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN: 100509) for the Financial Year 2024-25 at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

COST AUDIT REPORT: The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 314
March 2024.

iv) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership No.
F12205 and COP No. 18667), as Secretarial Auditor of the company for F.Y 2023-24 and
received the report from them.

The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 315t March 2024.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your directors fake this opportunity to thank its Bankers for their support in the growth of the
Company. Your directors wish to acknowledge with gratitude the patronage extended to the
Company by the large body of its customers and contribution made by the employees at all levels
and look forward to their dedicated commitment in the years to come towards the Company

reaching greater heights.

Finally, Directors would like to convey their deep sense of gratitude to the members and look
forward to their continued support in the growth of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

_(Sunildaldn)
wWhole=Timé&Director
DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 3%th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-540024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 04.09.2024
Place: Bangalore



Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

FORM NO, AOC.1

Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs)

Annexure-|

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

01 | Name of the Vanya Steels | A-One Gold A-One Gold Pipes | A One Gold
subsidiary Private Steels India and Tubes Private | Singapore Pte
Limited Private Limited | Limited | Ltd (USD)
02 | Reporting period | 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
for the subsidiary
concerned, if
different from the
holding company's
reporting period
03 | Reporting currency | INR INR INR usb
and Exchange rate Exchange
as on the last date Rate: Rs.
of the relevant 83.3739
financial year in
the case of foreign
| | subsidiaries.
04 | Share capital 1584.14 5.00 5.00 753
05 | Other Equity 9448.71 (14.00) (2076.45) 11,11,188
06 | Total assets 38333.22 7.97 22245.51 53,36,456
07 | Total Liabilities 27300.37 16.97 24316.96 53,36,456
08 | Investments 45.01 0 196.00 0
09 | Turnover 60882.37 0 43283.77 19770013
10 | Profit before 2183.37 (2.23) (1331.67) 1278384
taxation
11 | Provision for 563.48 0.01 219.76 204367
taxation
12 | Profit after 1619.89 (2.22) (1551.44) 1074017
taxation
13 | Proposed Dividend L 0 0 0
14 | % of shareholding 95.70 100 100 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1=
5

e

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NA
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. NA




Part "B": int Ventur
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures -

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2.Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held
by the company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture

Extend of Holding %

3.Description of how there is significant
influence

4.Reason why the associate/joint venture is
not consolidated

5.Net worth attributable to Shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consalidation

i. Not Considered in Consolidation

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.-NA

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the
year-NA

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.

On Behalf of the Board

Whole-Time Director Director

DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 04.09.2024
Place: Bangalore



Annexure-ll

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s length transaction under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arangements or fransactions not at Arm's length basis. :

NA
S| | Name (s) of Nature of Duration of | Salient terms of the | Date of | Amount
No | the related contracts/arr | the contracts or approv | paid as
party & nature | angements/ir | . ntracts Jar arrangements or al by advanc
of relationship | ansaction rangements transaction the es, if
: including the value, | Board | any
/transaction if any
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm'’s length basis.
SI | Name (s) of Nature of Duration | Salient terms of the | Date of | Amount
No | the related contracts/arran | of the | contracts or approv | paid as
party & nature | gements/iransa | . ntracts | @rrangements or al by advanc
of relationship | ction /amange transaction the es, if
including the value, | Board | any
ments/tra if any
nsaction
01 | Vanya Steels Purchase Goods | On need | As mutually agreed | 20.03.2 | Nil
Private Limited | and CIWP basis 023
(Subsidiary Sale of Goods On need | As mutually agreed
Company) basis
Receipt of lease | As per As per the Lease
rent the Lease | agreement
agreeme
nt
02 | A-one Gold Purchase of On need | As mutually agreed | 20.03.2 | Nil
Pipes and Goods and basis 023
Tubes Private CIWP
Limited, Sale of goods On need | As mutually agreed
(Wholly basis
Owned receipt of lease | As per As per the Lease
Subsidiary rent the Lease | agreement
Company) agreeme
nt
03 | A-One Gold Receipt of As per As per the Lease 20.03.2 | Nil
Steels India Lease Rent the Lease | agreement 023




Annexure-ll

Private Limited, agreeme
Wholly Owned nt
Subsidiary

Company)

04 | Bellary Tubes Purchase and On need | As mutually agreed | 20.03.2 | Nil
Corporation Sale of Goods basis 023
(Director and Handling
interested) Charges

Income.

05 | Laksh Steels Purchase and On need | As mutually agreed | 20.03.2 | Nil
(Director Sale of Goods basis 023
interested) and CIWP

06 | Sandeep Receipt of As per As per the Lease 20.03.2 | Nil
Kumar Lease Rent the Lease | agreement 023
(Director) agreeme

nt

07 | Mona Jalan Receipt of As per As per the Lease 20.03.2 | Nil
(Wife of Lease Rent the Lease | agreement 023
Director) agreeme

nt

Sun

il Jallan

On Behalf of the Board

For A-ONE STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMIT

Whole-Time Director

Sandeep Kumar

Director

DIN: 021508446
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces
Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024

DIN: 021124630
Address: Tower-3-39B, 3%9th Floor
SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 04.09.2024
Place: Bangalore



Annexure-IIT

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:

1. Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:
The Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee ('CSR Committee')

comprising of three members, as per the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act,

2013 ('the Act). Based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee and the approval of

the Board of Directors, Board approved to spend for demonstrating care for the community

through its focus on education & skill development, eradicating hunger, health & wellness

and environmental sustainability. Also embedded in this objective is support to the

disadvantaged /marginalized cross section of the society by providing opportunities to

improve their quality of life.

The projects undertaken during the financial year 2023-24 are within the broad framework
of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

During the financial year 2023-24, the CSR committee consisting of following Directors:

S1. | Name of Director | Designationy | Number of | Number of meetings
No. Nature of | meetings of CSR |of CSR Committee
Directorship | Committee held | attended during the
during the year year
01. Sunil Jallan Whole-Time 02 02
Director
02. Sandeep Kumar Director 02 02
03. | Manoj Kumar Director 02 01

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved

by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: https:/ /aonesteelgroup.com/

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR

Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable.




(Amount in Lakhs)

a. | Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):

Rs. 30828.79 lakhs

b. | Two percent of average net profit of the company as | Rs. 205.53 Lakhs
per section 135(5):

c. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes | Nil
or activities of the previous financial years

d. | Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if | Rs. 0.59 Lakhs
any

e. | Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] | Rs. 204.94 Lakhs

. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing

Project).:Rs. 232.35 Lakhs
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 232.35 Lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year | Unspent CSR Account as per | under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
(in Rs.) Section 135(6). section 135(5).

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of

transfer Fund transfer

NIL N.A NIL NIL NIL
Rs. 232.35 TOTAL
Lakhs




(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:

SL.No. Particular Amount (in Rs)
(1) ) (3)
(i) Two percent on average net profit of the company as per | Rs. 205.53 Lakhs
section135(5) (CSR Obligation is
Rs. 204.94 Lakhs)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 232.35 Lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs, 27.41 Lakhs
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | -
activities of the financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years | Rs. 27.41 Lakhs
[(i)-(v)

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three

Financial Years: NIL

) (3) @) (5) (6) @) ®)
Preceding Amount Balance | Amount | Amount Amount Deficie
Financial transferred | Amount | Spentin | transferred | remaining to be ncy, if
Year(s) to in the toa spent in any
Unspent Unspent | Financial | Fund as succeeding
CSR CSR Year (in | specified Financial Years
Account Account | Rs) under (in Rs)
under under Schedule
135(6) 135(6) VII as per
(in Rs.) second
proviso to
135(5),if
any
Amount | Date of
(in Rs) Transfer

NOT APPLICABLE

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the financial year:
¥ES/NO;
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not applicable




S1 | Short Pincode | Dateof | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/
No | particulars | of creation | of CSR | beneficiary of the registered owner
of the amount
the property spent
property or | or
asset(s) asset(s)
[including
complete
address
and
location of
the
property]
1) (2) (3) @) (5) (6)
CSR Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

On Behalf of the Board

il v 2
Sunil Jallan Sandeep Kumar
Whole-Time Director Director
DIN: 02150844 DIN: 02112430
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 04.09.2024
Place: Bangalore



